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AS DnB NORD Banka
2010. gada konsolidétie un Bankas finansu parskati

PADOMES UN VALDES ZINOJUMS

DnRB NORD Banka 2010. gadd turpindja stabilu un ilgtsp&iigu atiistibu, ipatu uzmanibu piev&rsot valsts
makroekonomiskas situdcijas raditas nelabvéligas ietekmes maksimalai samazinasanai, operacionale ienakumu
palielina$anai un bankas efekiivitates veicinasanai kopuma.

Darbibas rezultatu 2010, gada kopsavilkums

DnB NORD grupas operaciondld pelpa pirms uzkrajumiem un nodokliem 2010. gada sasniedza 20,4 miljonus
latu. Iep@mumi no pamatdarbibas 2010. gada sasniedza 50,6 miljonus latu.

Kopé&jie DnB NORD grupas aktivi Latvija 2010. gada beigas sasniedza 1,8 miljardus tatu.

DnB NORD Grupas kreditportfelis pirms uzkrajumiem 2010. gada beigas sastadija 1,6 miljardus latu, kas ir par
7% mazak neka pirms gada.

2010. gada parakstito jaunizsniegto kreditu apjoms sasniedza 167,5 miljonus laty, to skaité uznémumu
darbibai un attistibai tika izsniegti krediti 134 miljonu latu apméra.

2010. gada beigds DnB NORD grupas depozitu portfelis sasniedza 481 miljonus latu, kas ir par 249% vairak
neka gada sakuma. Jauzsver, ka 2010.gadd DnB NORD grupai izdeva@s palielindt savu tirgus dalu gan péc
kreditporifela, gan piesaistito depozitu apjoma.

Lai gan 2010.gada Latvijas ekonomika pakapeniski saka atveseloties, gan banku sektors kopuma, gan DnB
NORD Banka turpingja veidot uzkrajumus nedroajiem kreditiem.

2010. gada DnB NORD grupas neto uzkrajumu apjoms sasniedza 51,8 miljonus latu, un DnB NORD grupas
zaud&jumi péc uzkrajumiem un nodokliem 2010.gadd sasniedza 31,3 miljonus latu. Lai segtu zaud&jumus,
2010. gada DnB NORD Banka palielingja kapitala bazi par 24,8 miljoniem latu. 2010. gada 31. decembri DnB
NORD grupas pasu kapitdls Latvija bija 162,6 miljoni latu.

DnB NORD Bankas klientu. skaits 2010. gad3 palielindjds par 6,3%, to skaitd par 16% palielindjas bankas
klientu — mazo, vidgjo un licle uzn@mumu - skaits.

2010. gada par 12% palielingjas arT DnB NORD Bankas internetbankas iNORD klientu skaits, bet par 25%
palielingjas jaunizsniegto DnB NORD Bankas izdoto maksajumu karsu skaits.

Ceid uz jaunu zimolu DNB

2005. gada beigds, izveidojoties DnB NORD Grupai - NorvEgijas vado5as finandu grupas DnB NOR un
Ziemelvacijas lielakas bankas NORD/LB kopuzn&mumam, ta dibina$anas figuma tika paredzeéta iespéja DnB
NOR bankai atpirkt visas DnB NORD Grupas akcljas.

Balstoties uz parliecibu, ka Baltijas valstim un Polijai, kur ir parstavéta DnB NORD Grupa, ir lielakas izaugsmes
iespéjas neka lielakajai dalal Eiropas valstu, un véloties papladindt savu darbibu 5aja regiond, 2010. gada
nogalé DnB NOR parnéma sava Tpasuma visas DnB NORD Grupas akcijas.

Lai nodroinatu intensivaku grupas banku integraciju, DnB NOR piepémusi |Emumu 8§38 gada vela rudeni
vienlaicigi mainit gan DnB NORD grupas banku, gan ari DnB NOR nosaukumdu, tadéjadi — no 38 gada nogales
visa grupa stradas ar vienu zimolu - DNB,

— \
s /
P
/’ 4"/_1////’
Terje Turness Andris Ozoling
Padomes
priekssédetajs . Valdes prieksséd&tajs,
prezidents

Riga
2011, gada 28. marta
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The Supervisory Council and the Managemesnt Beard of the Bank

The Supervisory Council

Name Institution Fosition Date of appointment

Terje Turnes Bank DnB NORD A/S Chairman of the 1 March 2011
Supervisory Council

Torstein Hagen Banlk bnB NORD A/5 Vice Chairman of the 6 June 2007*
Supearvisory Council

Margrethe Melbye Bank DnB NORD A/S Member of the 22 February 2010

Grenn Supervisory Council

Tony Samuelsen DnB NOR Bank ASA Mamber of the 26 March 2008
Supervisary Council

Jekaterina Titarenko Banlk DnB NORD A/S Member of the 22 February 2010

Supervisory Council
= From 26 March 2006 till & June 2007 Torstein Hagen was a member of the Supervisory Council

The following members of the Supervisory Council have left their positions during the reporting period:

Name Institution Position Date of resignation

Cord Meyer Norddeutsche Member of the 23 December 2010
Landesbanic Supervisory Council
Girozentrale AG

Christoph Dieng Norddeutsche Member of the 22 February 2010
Landesbank Supervisory Council
Girozentrale AG

Michael Kiesewetter Norddeutsche Member of the 22 February 2010
Ltandeshank Supervisory Council
Girozentrale AG

Jarie Mortensen Cn8 NOR Bank ASA Member of the 22 February 2010

Supervisory Council

The following members of the Supervisory Councif have left their positions since 1 January 2011:
Name Institution Position Date of resignation

Thomas Buerkle Banic DnB NORD A/S Chairman of the 1 March 2011
Supervisory Council

The Management Board

Name Position Date of appointment
Andris Ozoilins Chairman of the Management Board 1 January 2004™
Sigfred Andersen Member of the Management Board 1 May 2010
Rudolf Karges Member of the Management Board 20 July 2000
Ivars Kapitovics Member of the Management Board 10 August 2006
Janis Teteris Member of the Management Board 1 August 2009

* From 29 March 2001 till 1 January 2004 Andris Ozolins was the Vice Chairman of the Management Board;
from 10 September 1999 till 29 March 2001 Andris Ozolins was a member of the Management Board.

The following members of the Management Board have left their positions during the reporting period:

Name Position ' Date of resignation

Bjdrn Poetzsch Member of the Management Board 1 May 2010
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STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD

The Management Board of AS DnB NORD Banka are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
of the Group and the Bank.

The financial statements on pages 6 to 65 are prepared in accordance with the source documents and present
fairly the financial position of the Group and the Bank as at 31 December 2010 and the results of their
operations and cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2010.

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted in European Union (EU) on a geing concern basis. Appropriate accounting policies have been applied
on a consistent basis. Prudent and reasonable judgements and estimates have been made by the Management
Board in the preparation of the financial statements.

The Management Board of AS DnB NORD Banka are responsible for the maintenance of proper accounting
records, the safeguarding of the Group's and the Bank’s assets and the prevention and detection of fraud and
other irregularities. They are also responsible for operating the Bank in compliance with the Law on Credit
Institutions, regulations of the Bank of Latvia, Financial and Capital Market Commission and other legislation of
the Repubiic of Latvia applicable for credit institutions.
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Andris Ozolins / Rud If Karges e  Iars Kapitovics Sigfred Knc‘igr?e’n/ Janis Teteris
CEO, Chairman of Mermiber of the " Member of the Member of the Member of the
the Management | Management Board Management Board Management Board Management Board

Board
Riga

28 March 2011
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the shareholder of AS DnB Nord Banka
Report on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of AS DnB Nord Banka and its subsidiaries (hereinafter —
the Group) and the accompanying financial statements of AS DnB Nord Banka (hereinafter - the Bank]), which are set out on
pages 6 through 65 of the accompanying 2010 Annual Report, which comprise the financial position as at 31 December 2010,
the statement of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for tne year then ended and & summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with the
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or errar.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disciosures in the financial staiements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effeciiveness of the entity's internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate ic provide a basis for aur audit opinion.

Opinion

in our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of Group and Bank of 31 December 2010,
and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporiing
Standards &s adopted Dy the European Union,

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Furtnermore, we have read the management report for the year ended 31 December 2010 (set out on page 2 of the accompanying
2010 Annual Report) and have not noted any material inconsistencies between the financial information inciuded in it and tne
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2010.

SIA Ernst & Young Baltic
Licence No. 17 R

I T
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Diana Krigiane Marting Valters
Chairperson of the Board Latvian Cerfified Auditor

Certificate No. 185

Riga,

28 March 2011

A EmbEl it of Erbst & Yalha Giolil



AS DnB NORD Banka
Consolidated and Bank Financial Statemenis

for the year ended 31 December 2010

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2010

Interest income

Interest expenses
Net interest income

Fees and commission income
Fees and commission expenses
Net fees and commissions

Net gain/ (loss) from operations with
foreign currency, trading securities
and derivative financial instruments
Other operating income

Dividends

Operating income

Personnel expenses
Other administrative expenses
Depreciation

Other operating expenses
Net allowances for impairment loss
(Loss) before income tax

Carporate income tax
{Loss) for the period

Total comprehensive (loss)

(Loss) attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank

Total comprehensive (loss)
attributabile to:

Equity holders of the Bank

The financial statements on pages 6 to 65 have

Notes

~

13

2010 2009 2010 2009
Group Group Bank Banl
LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000
71,483 93,671 67,095 86,570
(32,834) (49,896) (30,918) (45,588)
38,649 43,775 36,177 40,982
13,251 12,956 15,634 14,286
(8,524) (7,837) (8,118) (7,253)
4,727 5,119 7,516 7,033
4,053 6,087 4,239 6,116
3,122 5,199 597 376

3 2 83 2

50,554 60,182 48,612 54,509
(11,128) (11,296) (10,516) (10,443)
(10,603) (11,916) (9,690) (11,194)
(4,784) (6,145) (2,523) (2,469)
(3,621) (958) (3,402) (572)
(51,840) (123,534) (50,641) (123,934)
(31,422) (94,067) (28,160) (94,103)
120 6,979 - 7,025
(31,302) (87,088) (28,160) (87,078)
(31,302) (87,088) (28,160) (87,078)
(31,302) (87,088) (28,160) (87,078)
(31,302) (87,088) (28,160) (87,078)

Qggg approved by the Super-\’f/lss?ry Caunrﬂlrfmd the

Management Board of the Bank and signed on tﬁgw@ﬁalf by: y
Pt : Fd // E e . / g é—/’rj
5 Fipes o Sy
/. fe & FC P L L A
~Terje Turnes Andris Ozolins %R‘udolf‘ Karges,

Chairman of the Superviscry Council

Riga,
28 March 2011

Chairman of the Management

Board

Member of the Mapagement

Board

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



AS DnB NORD Banka
Consolidated and Bank Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2010

Consolidated statement of financial position at 31 December 2010

Assets Notes 2010 2009 2010 2008
Group Group Bank Bank
LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL000
Cash and balances with central banks 15 72,736 95,876 72,736 95,876
Due from other credit institutions (demand) 16 16,493 8,833 16,164 8,311
Derivatives 20 8,512 9,767 8,512 9,767
Financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss 18 138,767 119,673 138,767 119,673
-- Debt securities and other fixed
incorne securities 138,392 119,306 138,392 119,306
-- Investment funds 375 367 375 367
Financial assets available-for-sale 10 10 10 10
Loans and advances 1,499,658 1,612,543 1,454,110 1,515,898
-- Due from other credit institutions
(term) 16 54,877 11,458 54,877 11,458
-- Loans to customers 17 1,444,781 1,601,085 1,399,233 1,504,440
Accrued income and deferred expenses 23 680 696 580 562
Investment property 24 15,448 4,449 = =
Property and equipment 22 29,746 29,255 6,629 6,077
Intangible assets 21 1,207 1,539 861 1,146
Investments in subsidiaries 19 . = - 5,047 1,997
Deferred corporate income tax 13 6,483 6,483 6,483 6,483
Current corporate income tax 1,283 2,234 1,283 2,234
Qther assets 25 13,898 9,039 7,821 4,516
Total assets 1,804,921 1,900,397 1,719,003 1,772,550

The financial statements on pages 6 to 65 have been approved by the Supervisory Council and the

Management Board of the Bank and signed on their behalf by+— )/"_7 i
- = i, A<
Y= %f"’/ ’féﬁ’ / 4
. /fa[f i Ll [ % S Ly g
Terje Turnes Andris Ozolins / /Rudolf Karg?§/
Chairman of the Supervisory Council Chairman of the Management / Member of the Mahagement
Board [/ Board

Riga,
28 March 2011

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



AS DnB NORD Banka

Consolidated and Bank Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2010

Consolidated statement of financial position at 31 December 2010 (continued)

Liabilities

Liabilities to credit institutions on demand
Derivatives
Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
-- Due to credit institutions (term)
-- Deposits from customers and other
financial liabilities
Accrued expenses and deferred income
Deferred tax liability
Income tax liability
Other liabilities
Provisions
Subordinated loans
Total liabilities

Shareholders” equity
Share capital

Share premium
Reserve capital
Revaluation reserve
Accumulated result

Total shareholders’ equity attributable to

the shareholders of the Bank
Total shareholders® equity

Total liabilities and shareholders™ equity

Notes 2010 2009 2010 2009

Group Group Bank Bank

LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000

27 41,207 54,536 41,207 54,536

20 15,419 16,745 15,419 16,745

1,568,878 1,642,561 1,456,059 1,489,886

27 1,087,932 1,255,970 964,622 1,034,922

28 480,946 386,591 491,437 454,964

29 758 2,021 693 1,987
13 565 686 =

31 4,905 4,558 1,478 1,408

32 383 - 27,366 27,865

30 54,488 54,481 54,488 54,481

1,686,603 1,775,588 1,596,710 1,646,908

33 134,361 134,361 134,361 134,361

48,994 48,994 48,994 48,994

34 53,302 28,491 53,302 28,491

133 133 133 133

(118,472) (87,170)  (114,497) (86,337)

118,318 124,809 122,263 125,642

118,218 124,809 122,293 125,642

1,804,921 1,900,397 1,719,003 1,772,550

The financial statements on pages 6 to 65 have been approved by the Supervisory Council and the
Management Board of the Bank and signed on their behalfby-ﬂ-w

/
f/gzjz‘,?(f(,, = f/ = //;’/ /
i fez 2.
" Terje Turnes Andris Ozolins If'Karges rg
Chairman of the Supervisory Council Chairman of the Management Member f he Manage i3

Riga,
28 March 2011

Board

Board

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



AS DnB NORD Banka
Consolidated and Bank Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2010

Statement of changes in equity for the vear ended 31 December 2010

Group

At 1 January 2009

{Loss) for the year
Total comprehensive
loss

Increase of share capital

Increase of reserve capital
At 31 December 2005

(Loss) for the year

Total comprehensive
loss

Increase of reserve capital
At 31 December 2010

Bank

At 1 January 2009

{Loss) for the year
Totai comprehensive
loss

Increase of share capital
Increase of reserve capital
At 31 December 2009

{Loss) for the year
Total comprehensive
lass

Increase of reserve capital
At 31 December 2010

Attributable to equity holders

Share Share Reserve Revaluation Accumulated
capital premium capital reserve result Total
LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000
99,161 48,994 214 133 (82) 148,420
- - - - {(87,088) (87,088)
- - - - (87,088) (87,088)
35,200 - - - - 35,200
- - 28,277 - - 28,277
134,361 48,994 28 491 133 {(B7,170) 124,809
- - - - {(31,302) (31,302)
- - - - {(31,302) (31,302)
- - 24,811 - - 24,811
134,361 48,994 53,302 133 {118,472) 118,318
Share Share Reserve Revaluation Accumulated
capital premium capital reserve result Total
LVYL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000
99,161 48,994 2i4 ‘133 741 149,243
- - - - (87,078) (87,078}
- - - - (87,078) (87,078)
35,200 - - - - 35,200
- - 28,277 - - 28,277
134,361 48,994 28,491 133 {(86,337) 125,642
- - - - (28,160) (28,160)
- - - - (28,160) (28,160)
- - 24,811 - - 24,811
134,361 48,994 53,302 133 (114,497) 122,293

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



AS DnB NORD Banka
Consolidated and Bank Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2010

Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2010

Cash flows from operating activities

Loss before income tax and dividends

Depreciation and amortization of intangible assets and
property and equipment

Provisions for doubtful debts and off-balance sheet liabilities
{Loss)/profit from revaluation of securities, derivatives and
loans

{Profit)/loss from sale of fixed and intangible assets
Dividends received

{Profit)/loss from foreign currency revaluation
Cash flow from operating activities before changes in
assets and liabilities

Decrease/(Increase) in loans and advances to customers
Decrease/(Increase) in due from credit institutions

Decrease/{Increase) in derivatives
(Increase)/Decrease in financial assets designated at fair
value through profit and loss

(Increase)/Decrease in due te credit institutions
Decrease/{Increase) in accrued income and deferred
expenses

{Increase)/Decrease in other assets and taxes
Increase/{Decrease) in clients deposits

{Decrease)/Increase in derivatives

{Decrease)/Increase in accrued expenses and deferred
income

Increase/(Decrease) in other liabilities

Changes in cash and cash equivalents as a result of
operating activities

Corporate income tax paid

Increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents as a
result of operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

(Acquisition) of property and equipment and intangible
assets

Sale of property and equipment and intangible assets
{Acquisition) of participation in share capital of subsidiary
and Business Unit

{Acquisitiocn) of investment property
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents as
a result of investment activities

2010 2009 2010 2009
Group Group Bank Bank
LVL'000 LVL’'000 LVL'000 LVL"000
(31,422} (94,067} (28,160} (94,104)
4,784 6,145 2,523 2,469
46,728 123,729 45,888 123,779
(2,729) {149) {2,729} (149)
(214) (107} (11} (71)
(3) (2) (83) (2)

69 38 71 229
17,213 35,637 17,499 32,151
107,767 194,126 56,346 90,384
4,504 726 4,504 726
3,760 (2,018) 3,760 {2,018)
(17,060) 437 (17,060} 437
(168,028) (278,145) (70,290} (242,720)
17 77 (18) 97
(3,912) 2,439 (2,353} {1,706)
94,355 (51,16%5) 36,473 15,135
(1,326) 2,928 {1,326) 2,928
(1,263) 729 {1,295) 712
730 {812) {429) 355

- 2 - -
36,757 (95,039) 25,811 {103,519)
{9,201) (10,822) (2,976) (1,687}
4,473 4 180 1,360 107

- - (3,050) (1,011}
(10,999) (4,449 - -
(15,727) (11,091) (4,666) (2,591)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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AS DnB NORD Banka

Consolidated and Bank Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 20610

Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2010 {continued}

Note 2010 2009 2010 2009
Group Group Bank Bank
LVL'0OCOD Lvi’ooo LVL'000 LVL000
Cash flows from financing activities
Increase of share capital - 35,200 - 35,200
Increase of reserve capital 24,811 28,277 24,811 28,277
Subordinated liabilities attracted 7 14,056 7 14,056
Dividends received 3 - 83 -
Increase/{decrease) in cash and cash
eguivalents as a result of financing
activities 24,821 77,533 24,901 77,533
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents 45,851 {28,597) 46,046 (28,577)
Cash. and cash equivalents at the beginning of
the year 56,244 84,929 55,722 84,528
Loss/{gain) of foreign currency revaluation on
cash and cash equivalents {69} (88) {71} (229)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of
the year 15 102,026 56,244 101,697 55,722
2010 2009 2010 2000
Group Group Bank Bank
LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000
Cash flow from Interest received 70,692 95,191 66,212 87,592
Cash flow from Interest paid 33,631 57,131 31,897 52,572
Dividends received 3 2 83 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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AS DnB NORD Banka
Consclidated and Bank Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2010

Notes to the Financial Statements
1 INCORPORATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

AS DnB NORD Banka was established as Riga Commercial Bank on 26 June 1989. On & September 1991 it was
incorporated in the Republic of Latvia as a joint stock company. The parent of the Bank is Bank DnB NORD A/S
{Denmark) and the ultimate parent of the Bank is DnB NOR ASA (Norway).

The Group offers a wide range of financial services to enterprises and individuals.

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Supervisory Council and the Management Board an
28 March 2011, In accordance with the Commercial Law of the Republic of Latvia, the shareholders’ meeting
has the right to make decision on approval of the financial statements.

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Going concern

The Bank's management is fully convinced of stable and balanced performance going forward and based on that
prepared these financial statements.

The principal accounting policies adopted In the preparation of these financial statements are set out below:
a) Reporting Currency

The accompanying financial statements are reported in thousands of lats (LVL" 000), unless otherwise stated.
b) Basis of Presentation

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
as adopted in EU. The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, derivative contracts and the Group's and
Bank's buildings and investment properties which are measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS as adopted in EU requires the use of estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on management's best knowledge of current
events and actions, actual results ultimately may differ from those estimates.

These financial statements comprise of both, the financial statements of the parent company AS DnB NORD
Banka and the consolidated statements.

¢) Consolidation

Subsidiary undertakings in which the Bank, directly or indirectly, has the power tc exercise control over
financial and operating policies, have been consolidated.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which effective control is transferred to the Bank and are no
longer consclidated from the date of disposal or when the control ceases, All intercompany transactions,
balances and unrealised surpluses and deficits on transactions between Group companies have been eliminated.

d} Income and Expense Recognition

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement for all instruments measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method. Interest income includes coupons earned on fixed income
investment securities.

When loans become doubtful of collection, they are written down to their recoverable amounts and interest
Income is thereafter recognised based on the effective interest rate that was used {o discount the future cash
fiows for the purpose of measuring the recoverable amount.

Commissions received or incurred in respect to financial assets or liabilities not at fair value through profit or

toss are deferred and recognised as an adjustment to the effective interest rate on the asset or liability. Other
commissions and fees are credited and/ or charged to the income statement as earned/ incurred.

12



AS DnB NORD Banka
Consolidated and Bank Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2010

Noles to the Financial Statements (continued)
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
e} Foreign Currency Translation

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded in lats at actual rates of exchange set forth by the
Bank of Latvia at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items that are measurad at fair value in a foreign
currency, such as investments in equity instruments, are translated using the exchange rates at the date, when
the fair value was determined. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into lats at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the period. Any gain or loss resulting frem a change in
rates of exchange subsequent to the date of the transaction is included in the income statement as a profit or
toss from revaluation of foreign currency positions.

The principal rates of exchange (LVL to 1 foreign currency unit) set by the Bank of Latvia and used in the
preparation of the Group's and the Bank's balance sheets were as follows:

Reporting date usp EUR
As at 31 December 2010 0.535 0.702804
As at 31 December 2009 0.485 0.702804

f) Corporate income tax

Corporate Income tax for the reporting period is included in the financial statements based on the
management’s calculations prepared in accordance with Latvian Republic tax legislation.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on all temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. The deferred tax liability is
calculated using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and
that are expected to apply when the temporary differences reverse. The principal temporary differences arise
from different fixed asset depreciation rates, as well as tax losses carried forward. Where an overall deferred
taxation asset arises, it is only recognised in the financial statements to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be avaitable against which the temporary differences can be utitised,

g) Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the cash flow statements cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, balances due from
the Central Banks, due from ather credit institutions with original maturity less than 3 months and insignificant
risk due to change in value, less balances on demand due to other credit institutions.

fh) Loans and receivables and affowances for foan impairment

Balances due from banks and loans and advances to customers are accounted for as foans and receivables and
are carried at amaortised cost. Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not gucted in active markets. All loans and advances are recognised in the
balance sheet when cash is advanced to borrowers. For the purposes of these financial statements, finance
lease receivables are included in loans and advances to noa-banking customers.

A credit risk allowances for loan impairment is established if there is objective evidence that the Group or the
Bank will not be able to collect afl amounts due. The amount of the allowances is the difference between the
carrying amount and the recoverable amount, being the present value of expected cash flows, including
amounts recoverable from guarantees and collateral, discounted at the original effective interest rate of the
loans.

The Group and the Bank first assess whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for significant
loans, Loans that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to
be: recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment. If the Group and the Bank determines
that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed loan, it is included in a group of
loans with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed for impairment. For the purposes of a
collective evaluation of impairment loans are grouped on a basis of similar credit risk characteristics.

The Group and the Bank review their loan portfolios to assess impairment on a quarterly basis. In determining
whether an impairment loss should be recorded in the income statement, the Group and the Bank make
judgements as to whether there Is any objective indication that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows from a portfolio of loans before the decrease can be identified with an individual
loan in that portfelio. Management uses estimates based on historical loss experience for assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and current economic climate in which the borrowers operate. The methodology and
assumptions used are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss
experience. Nevertheless, it is reasonably possible, based on existing knowledge, that outcomes within the next
financial year that are different from assumptions could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount
of the asset or liability affected.

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related allowances for credit losses; subsequent
recoveries are credited to the income statement.
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AS DnB NORD Banka
Consolidated and Bank Financial Statemenis
for the year ended 31 December 2010

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
h) Loans and receivabies and allowances for loan impairment (continued)

Altowances for loan impairment are made in the currency of the related asset and are subject to revaluation at
pericd end at the rate set by the Bank of Latvia. Foreign exchange rate differences arising from such
revaluation are recorded in the income statement as additional allowances income from the recovery of existing
allowances (if any). The corresponding result of revalting the respective asset covered by the allowances for
loan impairment Is recorded as profit/ loss to foreign currency transactions.

Collective impairments

Collective impairments are divided In two major parts: pool provisions and IBNR {"impaired but not reported")
provisions. Pecl provisions are made for four groups of products like mortgage foans, private loans (both of
those groups are loans issued to private individuals secured with real estate collateral), loans to legal entities
and leasing with at least 31 day principal or interest overdue. Approach is linked to overdue payments. Amount
of impairments is calculated like incurred losses based on probability of default {probability that loan which is
delayed, for example, 60 days will came into default till remaining maturity) and loss given default.

IBNR provisions are made for rest of portfolio dividing loans into preduct groups (mortgage loans, private loans,
loans to legal entities and leasing) with overdue 0 to 30 days (principal or interest), into groups where
customers are included in specific risky sectors and rest of loans pooled in two groups based on either customer
is [egal or private entity. Provisions amount is based on historical loss rate for specific group and probability of
default,

Restructured foans

Where possible, the Bank seeks to restructure loans rather than take possession of collateral. This mostly
involves adjusting payment made by a borrower in a manner matching such a borrower's financial capacity
{temporarily reducing principal repayments, extending payment terms) and the agreement of new ioan
conditions. Once the terms have been renegotiated and executed a loan is no longer considered non-performing
as long as a borrower complies with the renegotiated terms and conditions. Such loans are continuously
reviewed to ensure that all criteria are met and that future payments are likely to accur and interest and fee
income is accrued and recognised as for other performing loans. Restructured loans continue to be subject to
an individual impairment assessment on a quarterly basis.

i Leases - when the Group or the Bank is a lessor

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the
use of a specific assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

When assets are held subject to a finance lease, the present value of the lease payments is recognised as a
receivable. The difference between the gross receivable and the present value of the receivable is recognised as
unearnad finance income. lLease income is recegnised over the term of the lease using the net investment
method, which reflects a constant periodic rate of return.

Leases where the Bank does not transfer substantially all the risk and benefits of ownership of the asset are
classified as operating leases. The Bank leases out all of its investmeant properties as operating leases, thus
generating rental income. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating operating leases are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent
rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Assets under operating leases are recognised as property and equipment at historical cost net of accumulated
depreciation. Pepreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis to write off the cost of each asset to its residual
value over the estimated useful life of property and equipment that is determined based on useful lives of
similar assets of the Group and the Bank. Rentals receivable under operating leases are credited to the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

If a sale and leaseback transaction results in an operating lease and the sales price is above fair value of the
asset sold, the excess over fair value is deferred and amortised over the period for which the asset is expected
to be used.

j} Factoring

Factoring represents banking service offered to legal entities duly incorporated in Latvia and using as the
collateral the specific legal entity’s chose in action against other carporate entities duly incorporated either in
Latvia or abroad, subject to its cession to AS DnB NORD Banka.

Factoring comprises financing of the buyer's debt, administration and collection thereof and/or coverage of the

buyers’-related credit risks. The Bank offers two types of factoring - factoring with recourse (or recourse
factoring) and factoring with insurance of the buyer.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued}
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
J) Factoring (continued)

Recourse factoring means that In case the buyer's payments are in arrears for 30 days the Bank shalt turn the
recourse action to the seller, and the financed amount complete with the accrued interest is due from the seller
within a certain period.

Factoring with insurance of the buyers stipulates insurance of two default cases, i.e. the buyer’'s legal insolvency
and actual (extended failure to pay) insolvency. The Bank applies recourse action to the seller in all remaining
cases, where the buyer's failure to pay is caused by inappropriate quality of goods and/or services or undue
delivery thereof, Factoring with insurance of the buyer is offered exclusively subject to entering into an
insurance agreement on insurance of the buyer's debt between the Bank and an acceptable insurance company.

k) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

. Financial assets held for trading;

. Financial assets designated at fair value through profit and loss
Financia! assets designated at fair value through profit and joss are designated by management on
initial recognition as a part of financial assets which are managed and their performance evaluated on
a fair value basis.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value based on quoted bid prices. In the
absence of the active market, the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is derived
from the value of an instrument that is substantially the same or from discounted cash flow models. Gains and
losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial assets are recognised in the income statement.

Interest earned whilst holding financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is recorded as interest income.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised at
settlement date.

1) Subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries in the Bank's financial statements are accounted for under the cost method.

The Bank recognises income from investment only to the extent that the Bank receives dividends from the
accumulated profit of the subsidiaries arising after the date of acquisition.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost
of an acquisition is measured as the falr value of the assets given plus costs directly attributable to the
acquisition. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable net
asseis acquired is recorded as goodwill.

m) Property and Fquipment

Property is valued at fair value. Equipment and other assets are recorded at cost or valuation less accumulated
depreclation.

Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount.

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method to write off the cost or revaluated amount of each asset
to their residual value over the estimated useful life of the asset. The following depreciation rates have been
applied;

Category Annual Rate
Buildings 1% - 2%
Building parts 2% — 6%
Engineering networks and equipment 4%
Office equipment 10% - 20%
Netwark and computer equipment 20% -25%
Vehicles 20%

Maintenance and repair costs are charged to the income statement as incurred. The assets’ residual values and
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

Leasehold improvements are capitalised and depreciated over the shorter of their useful life and remaining
lease contract period on a stralght-line basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
m) Property and Equipment (continued)

Revaluation reserve

The fair value of land and buildings is determined from market-based evidence by appraisal that is normally
undertaken by professicnally qualified values. The fair value of items of plant and equipment is their market
value determined by appralsal.

The frequency of revaluations depends upon the changes in fair values of the items of property, plant and
equipment being revalued. When the fair value of a revalued asset differs materially from its carrying amoung,
a further revaluation is required.

If an item of property, plant and equipment is revalued, the entire class of property, plant and equipment to
which that asset belongs shall be revalued.

n) Investment property

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The carrying amount includes
the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property at the time that cost is incurred if the recognition
criteria are met; and excludes the costs of day to day servicing of an investment property. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the reporting
date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investrment properties are included In the income
statement in the period in which they arise.

Investment properties are derecognised when either they have been disposed of or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. The
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in the income
statement in the period of derecognition.

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer from
investment property to owner occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value
at the date of change in use. If owner occupied property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated under property, plant and equipment up to the date of
change in use.

o) Foreclosed property

Foreclosed properties and other properties classified as current assets are included in Collaterals taken over for
realization and recorded in Other assets. They are carried at the lower of book value and net realizable value.

p) Intangible assets

Acquired computer software licences are recognised as intangible assets on the basis of the costs incurred to
acquire and bring to use the software, These costs are amortised on the basis of their expected useful lives, not
exceeding five years.

g) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments including foreign exchange contracts and interest rate swaps are initially
recognised at cost and subsequently are re-measured at their fair value. Derivatives are revaluated at least
monthly. Fair values are obtained from guoted market prices and discounted cash flow models as appropriate.
All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.
Changes in the fair value of derivatives are reported in the income statement.

Derjvatives notional amounts are recognised in Bank off-balance sheet accounts.

Bank recognised income from revaluation on derivatives and interest income on interest rate swap.

r) Hedge accounting principles

In order to manage particutar risks arising from changes in interast rates the Group uses derivative instruments
and applies hedge accounting for transactions meeting the specified criteria.

At inception of the hedge relationship, a formal documentation is prepared of the relationship between the
hedged itermn and the hedging Instrument, including the objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge and
the methed that will be used to assess the effectiveness of the hedging relationship.

Further, at the inception of the hedge relationship, a formal assessment is undertaken to ensure that the hedge
refationship is expected to be highly effective. A hedge is considered to be highly effective if the changes in fair
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
r) Hedge accounting principles(continued)

value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk during the period for which the hedge is designated are
expected to offset in a range of 80% to 125%.

In relation to hedges (fair value), which meet the conditions for hedge accounting, any gain or loss from re-
measuring the hedging instrument to fair value is recognised immediately in the staterment of income.

For derivatives, which do not qualify for hedge accounting, any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value are taken directly to the statement of income for the period.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or
no longer qualifies for hedge accounting.

s) Financial liabilities carried at amortised cost

Financial liabilities carried at amortised cost are mainly amounts due to customers and due to banks. These are
recognised initially at cost, being their issue proceeds (fair value of consideration received) net of transaction
costs incurred. Financial liabilities are subsequently stated at amortised cost and any difference between net
proceeds and the redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

t) Employee benefits

The Group and the Bank pay sccial security contributions for state pension insurance and to the state funded
pension scheme in accordance with Latvian legislation. State funded pension scheme is a defined contribution
plan under which the Group and the Bank pay fixed contributions determined by the law and they will have no
legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the state pension insurance system or state
funded pension scheme are not able to settle their liabilities to employees. The social security contributions are
recognised as an expense on an accrual basis and are included within staff costs.

The provision for employee holiday pay is estimated for the Group’s and the Bank's personnel based con the
total number of holidays earned but not taken and average salary of employees including social security
expense.

u) Off-balance sheet items

In the ordinary course of business, the Group and the Bank have been involved with off-balance sheet financial
instruments consisting of commitments to extend loans and advances, financial guarantees and commercial
letters of credit. Such financial instruments are recorded in the financial statements when they are funded or
related fees are incurred or received.

v) Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Fair value is the amount for which an asset couid be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable,
willing parties in an arm's length transaction. Fair values of financial assets or liabilities, including derivative
financial instruments, in active markets are based on quoted market prices.

w) Off-setting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or
realise the assets and settle the liability simultaneously.

x) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group and the Bank have a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required

x) Provisions (continued)

to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. These provisions
relate to the guarantees issued and other off balance sheet items. The assessment of provisions requires the
application of management's judgement and estimates, as to the probability of an outflow of resources, the
probability of recovery of resources from corresponding sources including security or collateral or insurance
arrangements where appropriate, and the amounts and timings of such outflows and recoveries, if any.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
v} Financial Guarantees

The Group measures issued financial guarantees initially at their fair value, which is normally evidenced by the
amount of fees received. This amount is then amortised on a straight-line basis over the life of the guarantee.
At each balance sheet date, the guarantees are measured at the higher of {i) the unamertised balance of the
amount at initial recognition and (ii) the best estimate of expenditure required to settle the commitment at
balance sheet date.

z) Trust Activities

Funds managed or held in custody by the Group and the Bank on behalf of individuals, trusts and other
institutions are not regarded as assets of the Group and the Bank and, therefore, are not included in the
balance sheet.

aa} Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Such estimates and assumptions are outlined below:

« Impairment losses of loans and advances. The Group reviews its loan portfolio to assess impairment
an a regular basis as described in Note 2(h).

. Bank has performed random back-testing of provisions for immaterial non performing morigage
secured loans to private individuals. According to results of the test the unsecured part increassd
resulting in increase in provisions of LVL 12,0 million.

« During 2010 provisions in amount of LVL 24,8 million were reclassified from pool provisions to specific
provisions, calculation methods for immaterial exposures overdue more than 90 days remained the
samme.

+ Deferred assets:
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised, Significant management judgment is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

» Going concern:
The Group's and the Bank’s management has made assessment of the Group’s and the Bank’s ability
to continue as going concern and is satisfied that the Group and the Bank has the resources to
continue in business for the foreseeable future, Furthermore, the management is not aware of any
material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upen the Group’s and Bank’s ability to continue
as @ going concern. Therefore, the financial statemenis continue to be prepared on the going concern
basis.

. Fair values:
Where the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded on the statement of financial
position cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation
techniques that include the use of mathematical models. The inputs to these models are derived from
ocbservable market data where possible, but where observable market data are not available, judgment
is required to establish fair values. The judgements include considerations of liquidity and model
inputs. The valuation of financial instruments is described in more detail in Note 38.

« Investment property and property:

The Group and the Bank carried its investment properties at fair value, with changes in fair value being
recognized as other operating revenue or other operating expense in the statement of comprehensive
incame. In addition, it measures land and buildings at revaluated amounts with changes in fair value
being recognized In other comprehensive inceme. The Group and the Bank engaged independent
valuation specialists to determine fair value as at 31 December 2010. The valuator used a valuation
technigques based on comparable market data and discounted future income. More details on values of
investment properties are disclosed in Note 24 and on land and buildings in 22.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3 ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS AND NEW
ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The Group has adopted the following new and amended IFRS and IFRIC interpretations during the year:
«  Amendment to IFRS 2 Share-based Payment
« Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements :
Amendment to TAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement — Eligible Hedged Items
IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements
IFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners
IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers
Improvements to IFRS (issued in 2008 and 2009 and effective on 1 January 2010).

* & b6 & 9

The principal effects of these changes are as follows:

Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations and TAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements

The amendments to IFRS 3 introduce significant changes in the accounting for business combinations occurring
after becoming effective. Changes affect the valuation of non-contralling interest, the accounting for transaction
costs, the initial recognition and subsequent measurement of a contingent consideration and business
combinations achieved in stages. These changes will impact the amount of goodwill recognised, the reported
results in the peried that an acquisition cccurs and future reported results.

The amendments to IAS 27 require that a change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary (without loss of
control) is accounted for as an equity transaction. Therefore, such transactions do not give rise to goodwiil, nor
they give rise to a gain or loss. Furthermore, the amended standard changes the accounting for losses incurred
by the subsidiary as well as the loss of control of a subsidiary.

The changes to IFRS 3 and IAS 27 were applied prospectively, therefore, they affect acquisitions or loss of
control of subsidiaries and transactions with non-controlling interests after 1 January 2010.

The other standards and interpretations and their amendments adopted in 2010 did not impact the financial
statements of the Group, because the Group did not have the respective financial statement items and
transactions addressed by these changes.

Standards issued but not yet effective

The Group has not applied the following IFRSs and IFRIC Interpretations that have been issued but are not yet
effective: .

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures (effective for financial years beginning on or
after 1 July 2011, once adopted by the EU}

The amendment modifies disclosure requirements for certain transfers of financial assets. The amendment is
not expected to have any Impact on the consolidated financial statements since the Group does not have these
kinds of transfers.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2013, once
adopted by the EU).

IFRS 9 will eventually replace IAS 39. The IASB has issued the first two parts of the standard, establishing a
new classification and measurement framework for financial assets and reguiremnants on the accounting for
financial liahilities. The Group has not yet evaluated the impact of the implementation of this standard.

Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes (effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2012,
once adopted by the EU).

The amendment provides a practical solution to the problem of determining whether an entity that is measuring
deferred tax related to investment property, measured using the fair value model, expects to recover the
carrying amount of the investment property through use or sale by introducing a presumgpticn that recovery of
the carrying amount will norrmally be through sale. The Group has not estimated yet the impact of the
implementation of these changes.

Amendments to IAS 24 Related Parly Disclosures (effective for financial years beginning on or after 1
January 2011).

The amendments simplify the definition of a related party, clarifying its intended meaning and eliminating
inconsistencies from the definition. They also provide a partial exemption from the disclosure requirements for
government-related entities. The implementation of these amendments will have no impact on the financial
posltion ar performance of the Group, however it may impact the related parties disclosures.

Amendment to IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation — Classification of Rights Issues (effective
for financial years beginning on or after 1 February 2010).

The amendment changes the definition of a financial liability to exclude certain rights, options and warrants.
The amendment will have no impact on the financial position or performance of the Group, as the Group does
not have such instruments.
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3 ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS AND NEW
ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS (contintued)

Improvements to IFRSs

In May 2010 IASB issued omnibus of amendments to its standards. The amendments become effective for
annual periods on or after either 1 July 2010 or 1 January 2011, The adoption of the following amendments
may result In changes tc accounting policies but will not have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group:

. IFRS 3 Business Combinations;

IFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures;

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements;

IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements;

IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes.

Amendment to IFRIC 14 IAS 19—The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their Interaction (effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2011).

The amendment modifies the accounting for prepayments of future contributions when there is a minimum
funding reguirement. This amendment will not have any impact on the consolidated financial statements
because the Group does not have defined benefit assets,

IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments (effective for financial years
beginning on or after 1 July 2010),

The interpretation provides guidance on accounting for extinguishing financial liabilities with equity instruments.
Since the Group does not have such transactions, IFRIC 19 will not have any impact on its consoclidated
financial statements.

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
a} Credit risk and concentration risk

The Group and the Bank bear an exposure to credit risk that is defined as the risk of losses due to failure on the
part of the counterparties of the Group and the Bank to meet their payment obligations. The credit risk appetite
of the Group and the Bank has been defined in the credit strategy of the Group and the Bank.

The credit strategy of the Group and the Bank provides the fixed limits of exposure ranges with regards to a
single borrower, a group of interrelated borrowers, countries (regions) and industries. The Group has defined
the concentration risk as any single (direct and/or indirect) exposure or group of exposures with the potential
to produce losses large enough to threaten the health of the Group and the Bank or its ability to maintain its
core business. Thus, regular monitoring and management of the concentration risk has been ensured.as well.

According to the strategy, the Group and the Bank continuously increases risk~sensitiveness of its credit risk
management system by the implementing appropriate credit risk measurement tools.

Thus, together with traditional credit risk assessment statistical scoring models and expert scorecards are used
to evaluate probability of loss events. 93% of credit portfolio exposure is covered by appropriate loss
probability measurement tools. For corporate and medium size enterprises sector financial indicator model is
the main driver for assigning the final credit risk rating, while adjustments based on qualitative factors are
timited and are closely monitored by the credit risk analysts, who do not benefit from the credit decisions. For
private sector statistical application and behaviour scoring models are used to monitor development of risk
profile regularly.

For credit risk management purposes an unified Master scale is used to reflect the risk of counterparts or sub-
portfolios. According to DnB NORD credit risk strategy, the Master scale is organized in ten risk classes and
three risk categories:

Risk class Risk category: | Risk category:

Large SME and
Corporate Private
customers customers

1

% Low Risk Low Risk

4

3 Medium Risk

& Medium Risk

7

8 High Risk

9 High Risk .

10
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The Group and the Bank monitors the development of risk profile on on-going basis. The credit risk policy is
subject for annual or more frequent review. Inter alia, the changes of the credit policy can be initiated
according to the stress testing results or changes in the econemic environment.

b) Currency risk

Within common business conditions the Group and the Bank bears an exposure to the conseguences of
fluctuations in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows. Currency
risk is the possibility to suffer loss from revaluation of balance sheet and off-balance sheet items denominated
in foreign currencies when the exchange rate changes. For the assessment of this risk open FX positions are
used.

The Group and the Bank follows the conservative currency risk management policy and prefer to keep FX open
positions close to zero. The Group's and the Bank's exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk is
summarised in Note 41.

The Bank regularly runs and analyses respective stress tests, which are based on the BnB NORD Group-wide
methodology, including three scenarios (standard, possible and worst).

According to the defined currency exchange rate range limits for standard scenario the maximum loses risk is
LVL 0,15 million (2009: LVL 0,15 milllon) (impact on profit before tax).

The standard scenario assumptions are surmnmarized in the table below:

EUR LTL PLN DKK Uusp EEK Other
currencies
Change in FX rate 0.75% 0.50% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 2.50%

In case of standard scenario, the net equity would change by LVL 0,025 million {2009; LVL 0,07 million).
c) Interest rate risk in the banking book

Within common business conditions the Group and the Bank takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in
the prevailing levels of market interest rates on its financial position and cash flows. Interest rate risk is the risk
that the Group and the Bank incurs losses as a consequence of unfavourable changes in interest rates. For
assessment and management of this risk sensitivity to changes in interest rates is calculated and limited. Such
risks are monitored on a rolling basis and are subject to annual or more frequent review.

The Bank restricts interest rate risk using limits, set by the Board of Director of Bank DnB NORD A/S. Limits are
defined for every currency book in total and for every currency book particular time bucket. At the end of 2010
the Group and the Bank complied with defined limits.

For the estimation of the impact of adverse market conditions on net equity of the Bank (stress-testing), the
Bank utilizes three scenarios corresponding to standard, possible and worst case interest rates curves
movements for major currencies {LVL, EUR and USD). According to the defined interest rate risk limits the
maximum losses risk is LYL 1,93 million, if interest rates in major currencies change by 1%. Net equity change
would amount to LVL 0,69 million (2009: LvL 1,39 million) if this scenario was applied to the Bank’s actual
positions.

The table below allocates the Group's net positions based on interest rate review dates (assets less liabilities)
as at 31 December 2010:

Net position

Net position (LVL) {UsDb) Net position

LVL'000 Lvi'coo {EUR) LVL000

Up to 3 months (119,103) {16,934) (78,562)
3 - 6 months 32,366 9,238 100,655
6 - 12 months {18,534) 1,084 24,484
1- 5 years (22,452) (2,442) (24,013}
Over 5 yeais 35 16 106
Total {127,688) {9,038) 22,670
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coniinued)
The table below allocates the Group's positions as at 31 December 2009:

Net position

Net position (LVL) (Usb) Net position

LVL’000 LVL'000 {EUR) LVL'000

Up to 3 months {154,132) (31,772 (223,939)
3 - 6 menths 4,245 28,546 78,684
6 - 12 months (7,942) 330 76,139
1- 5 years (14,717} (1,316) 16,958
QOver 5 years (18) 12 63
Total (172,564) (4,200} (52,095)

The table below allocates the Bank's positions as at 31 December 2010:

Net position

Net position (LVL) (USD) Net position

LVL'00D0 LVL'000 (EUR) LVL'000

Up to 3 months (136,856) (16,861) (138,055)
3 - 6 months 32,753 9,239 103,428
6 - 12 months (18,116) 1,086 28,475
1- 5 years (22,355) (2,431) {13,467)
Over 5 years 35 16 150
Total {144,539) (8,551} {16,469)

The table below allocates the Bank's positions as at 31 December 2009:

Net position

Net position (1L.VL) (UsbD) Net position

LVL'000 LVL'000 (EUR) LVL'00O

Up to 3 months {153,467) (30,2590} (108,158)
3 - 6 months 4,262 28,564 81,592
6 - 12 months (7,502) 333 79,773
1- 5 years (14,595) (1,301) 28,978
Over 5 vears (18) 12 63
Total {171,720} (2,682) 82,248
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuec)
d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk means the risk that the Bank is unable to meet its financial obligations in time or the risk to incur
losses due to the sudden decrease in financial rescurces {eg. the financial crisis situations may result in the run
on the bank and delay of incoming payments) as well as due to increase in price of the new resources designed
far refinancing. The consequence of liquidity risk occurrence may be the failure to meet obligaticns to repay
depositors and fulfil loan commitments. Liguidity risk is controlled on an overall DnB NORD Group level and
restricted by liquidity ratio, set by the Financial and Capital Market Commission and the limits set by the Board
of Director of Bank DB NORD A/S.

The Bank's liquidity ratio, calculated using the methodology approved by the FCMC, is 45,12% (2009: 42,50
%), The FCMC requires that the liquidity ratio should not be less than 30%.

Liquidity risk management process in the Group is divided into the long-term (1 year)} risk management and
short-term {up to 1 month} risk management. The aim of short-term liquidity is to meet the dally need for
funds, to ensure the compliance with the reserve requirements set by the Bank of Latvia and liquidity
requirements set by the Financial and Capital Market Commission as well as the compliance with the internal
liquidity limits. Short-term liquidity is maintained through daily monitoring of the liquidity status, day-to day
funding. Long-term liquidity risk is managed by analysing the predicted future cash flows taking into account
the deposit and loan portfolio growth as well as the possible refinancing sources.

For the purpose of the liquidity risk assessment the liquidity gap, taking into account the maturity and the
funding ratio, are analysed. The liquidity risk is restricted by imposing the internal limits on liquidity gap and
funding ratio. These limits are subject to daily monitoring and regular reporting to the management bodies of
the Graup.

Liquidity gap is calculated by looking at the Banks' net refinancing situation within one week and one month,
taking into accounts the budgeted growth in lcan portfolio and deposit base. Liquid assets and short term
liabilities are included for liquidity gap calculation for respective terms {1 week and 1 month).

e) Market risk

Market risk - is the risk that the Group and the Bank incur losses as a consequence of changes of market

variables (interest rates (see Note 4 (c), foreign exchange rates (see Note 4 (b}). Methodology and limits of
market risk assessment and management are approved by the Board of Director of Bank DnB NORD A/S.
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5 INTEREST INCOME

Interest income:
- interest on financial assets measured at
amortised cost:

- interest on loans and receivables to
customers

- interest on impaired loans

- interest on balances due from credit
institutions and central banks

- interest on financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss:
- interest on derivatives

- interest on held for trading financial assets
Total interest income

6 INTEREST EXPENSES

Interest expense:
- interest on deposits from customers
- interest on balances due to credit
institutions and central banks

- interest on subordinated liabilities
- interest on other financial liabilities
- interest on derivatives

Total interest expense

Net interest income

7 FEES AND COMMISSION INCOME

Credit card service

Commissions on loans monitoring and service
Money transfers

Client service

Guarantees

Trade finance

Cash operations

Investments products

Other

Total fees and commission income

2010 2009 2010 2009
Group Group Bank Bank
LVL'000 LVYL'00G LVL'000 LVL'000
64,677 78,22 60,289 71,120
57,879 76,980 53,591 69,879
5,779 - 5,779 -
919 1,241 919 1,241
6,806 15,450 6,806 15,450
- 10,413 - 10,413
6,806 5,037 6,806 5,037
71,483 93,671 67,095 86,570
2010 2009 2010 2009
Group Group Bank Bank
LVL'000 LVL'0CO LVL'000 LVL'00O
6,742 11,653 7,191 12,191
21,269 35,858 18,904 31,012
1,384 1,652 1,384 1,652
966 733 966 733
2,473 - 2,473 -
32,834 49,896 30,918 45,588
38,649 43,775 36,177 40,982
2010 2009 2010 2009
Group Group Bank Bank
LVL'000 LVL'0O00 LVL'000 LVL'000
6,796 8,049 6,796 8,049
1,998% 651 1,837% 491
1,637 1,528 1,637 1,528
1,802 1,566 1,094 1,020
363 349 3,577 2,379
47 181 47 181
300 331 300 331
110 57 148 63
198 244 i98 244
13,251 12,956 15,634 14,286

* Commissions on loans monitoring and service include income from loan advanced repayment in amount of

LVL 1,367 thousand in Group and Bank.
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8 FEES AND COMMISSION EXPENSES
2010 2009 2010 2009
Group Group Bank Bank
LVL000 LYL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000
Credit cards service 3,087 3,882 3,087 3,882
Loans monitoring expense 3,639 2,651 3,234 2,082
Commissions on [oans 67 102 67 102
Cash operations 370 376 370 376
Money transfers 351 325 351 325
Guarantees 270 181 270 181
Client service 100 122 160 i07
Other 640 198 639 i98
Total fee and commission expenses 8,524 7,837 8,118 7,253
Net fees and commission 4,727 5,119 7,516 7,033

9 NET GAIN/(LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS WITH FOREIGN CURRENCY, TRADING SECURITIES AND
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

2010 2009 2010 2009

Group Group Bank Bank

LVL'000 LVL000 LVYL'GO00 LVL'000

Gain from operations with foreign currencies 2,800 3,452 2,987 3,621
(l.oss)/gain from trading with financial assets at

fair value through profit or loss {1,406} 834 {1,406} 894
Gain/ (loss) from revaluation of financial assets

at fair value through profit or lpss* 2,033 1,680 2,033 1,680

{Loss)/gain from foreign currency revaluation (70} (88) (71) {228)

Gain/ (loss) from derivatives revaluation 696 149 6596 149

4,053 6,087 4,239 6,116

* The income arises from revaluation of fixed income securities

10 OTHER OPERATING INCOME

2010 2009 2010 2009
Group Group Bank Bank
LVL000 LVL'000 LVL'GO0 LVL'000
Operating lease income 2,531 4,337 - -
Profit from sale of property and equipment 214 71 11 71
Other operating income 377 791 586 305
3,122 5,199 597 376

11 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
2010 2009 2010 2009
Group Group Bank Bank
LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'G00 LVL'000
Salary to Council - 4 - 4
Salary to Board 370 391 370 391
Salary to employees 8,546 8,626 8,053 7,940
Social insurance contributions 2,212 2,275 2,093 2,108
Total salaries and related expenses 11,128 11,296 10,516 10,443
Advertising 1,489 1,820 1,419 1,749
Refurbishment and maintenance 3,787 3,065 3,618 2,908
Payments for management services to Group 696 1,934 656 1,934
Occupancy costs 2,219 2,471 1,977 2,303
Communications 771 869 717 775
Insurance 351 467 305 436
Training 93 101 91 96
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11 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES {continued)

2010 2009 2010 2009

Group Group Bank Bank

LVLi'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000

Professional services 238 147 75 79
Business travel 82 94 80 g1
External audit expenses 126 126 101 105
Other 751 822 611 718
Total other administrative expenses 10,603 11,916 9,690 11,194
Total administrative expenses 21,731 23,212 20,206 21,637

Average number of staff employed by the Group in 2010 was 827 by the Bank was 779 {by the Group in 2009

was 843 by the Bank was 774)

i2 OTHER QPERATING EXPENSES

2010 2009 2010 2009
Group Group Bank Bank
LYL'000 LvL'00C LVL'000 LVL'000
Penalty fee* 2,328 - 2,328 -
Expenses from write-offs of property and
equipment 186 29 186 29
Other operating expenses 1,107 929 888 543
3,621 958 3,402 572
* Penalty fee for IT development project cancellation.
13 CORPORATE INCOME TAX
2010 2009 2010 2009
Group Group Bank Bank
LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000
Corporate income tax for the year - 1 - -
Deferred tax {120) {6,980) - (7,025)
(129) (6,979) - {7,025)

Corporate income tax differs from the theoretically calcufated tax amount, which would be applicable on profit

before taxation at the 15% rate as stipulated by the law {see below):

2010 2009 2010 2009

Group Group Bank Bank

LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'0C0

Profit before taxation (31,422) (94,067} {28,160) (94,103)

Theoretically calculated tax at a tax rate of 15% (4,713) (14,110} {4,224) (14,115)
Undeductable revaluation of securities and

derivatives (409) (274) (409) (274)

Impairment for debtors 205 62 23 23
Other net expenses not deductible for tax

purposes 1,160 306 665 305

Non-taxable income {12) (79) (12) (11)

Tax losses used for the Group - - 63 22

Unrecognised deferred tax asset 3,649 7,116 3,894 7,025

(120) (6,979} - {7,025)
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13 CORPORATE INCOME TAX (continued)

Deferred tax liability at the beginning of the year
Change in deferred tax asset during the year

Deferred tax at the end of the year

2010 2009 2010 2009
Group Group Bank Bank
LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000
(5,797} 1,158 (6,483) 542
(120} (6,955) - (7,025)
(5,917)* (5,797)* {6,483) (6,483)

*Deferred tax assets LVL 6,483 thou (2009: LVL 6,483 thou)
*Deferred tax llability LVL 565 thou {2009: LVL 686 thou)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carried forward to the extent that realization of the
related tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable. The deferred tax assets recognised at 31
December 2010 in respect of tax losses have been based on profitability assumptions over five year horizon.
The expected future taxable profits are based on business plan assumptions taking into consideration
uncertainties arising from the current adverse economic environment. If the business plan earnings and
assumptions in following quarters substantially deviate from the current assumptions, the amount of existing

deferred tax assets may need to be adjusted,

Deferred tax has been calculated from the following temporary differences between assets and liabilities values

for financial and tax purposes:

Gross deferred income tax liability:

Temporary difference on property and equipment
depreciation

Gross deferred income tax asset:

Temporary difference on accruals for unused
annual leave and bonuses

Other temporary differences

Change in unrecognised deferred tax asset

Tax loss carried forward

Net deferred tax liahility

2010 2009 2010 2009
Group Group Bank Bank
LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000
1,433 1,188 633 624
(101) (110) (91) {106)
(181) - (181) -
11,217 6,501 11,086 7,049
(18,285) (14,076) (17,930} (14,050)
(5,917) {6,497) (6,483) {6,483)

As at 31 December 2010 tax losses of the Group constituted LVL 121,899 thousand. In accordance with the law

"On Corporate Income Tax” tax losses can be carried forward and

subsequent eight years.

Tax losses of 2008
Tax losses of 2009
Tax losses of 2010

Group
Tax losses
LVL'GOO0

73
93,672

28,154

121,899
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14 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to equity holders of the Bank by

the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. The average quantity of shares is
134,360,900.

2010 2009
Group Group
LVL000 LYL'000
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Bank (31,302) {87,088)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 134,360,900 117,095,235
Basic earnings per share (expressed in LVL per share) {0,23) (0,74)
Diluted earnings per share (expressed in LVYL per share) {0,23) (G, 74)
15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
2010 2009 2010 2009
Group Group Bank Bank
LVL'GGO0 LVL'O00 LYL 000 LVL'000
Cash 12,064 11,225 12,064 11,225
Balances on demand with the Central Banks 60,672 84,651 60,672 84,651
Total cash and balances on demand with 72,736 95,876 72,736 95,876
Central Banks
Balances due from other credit institutions
with the original maturity less than 3 moenths 70,497 14,913 70,168 14,391
Balances on demand due to other credit
institutions (41,207} (54,545) (41,207) (54,545)
Total cash and cash equivalents 102,026 56,244 101,697 55,722

The correspondent account with the Bank of Latvia reflects the balance of the Bank's correspondent account, on
which interest is paid in the amount of the compulsery reserve requirement.,

The Bank is required to comply with minimum reserve requirements set by the Bank of Latvia . This requires
the Bank's monthly average LVL balance on its correspondent account with the Bank of Latvia to exceed a
specified minimum during the maintenance pericd of requirements,

The Bank was in compliance with the reserve requirement during the reporiing period.

16 DUE FROM OTHER CREDIT INSTITUTIONS

2010 2009 2010 2009
Group Group Bank Bank
LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000

Demand deposits
Republic of Latvia credit institutions 331 561 1 39
OECD credit institutions 15,863 7,825 15,864 7,925
Non-OECD credit institutions 299 347 259 347
Total demand deposits 16,493 8,833 16,164 8,311

Term deposits

Republic of Latvia credit institutions 6,183 6,067 6,183 6,067
OECD credit institutions 48,394 457 48,3594 457
Non-OECD credit institutions 300 4,934 300 4,934
Total term deposits 54,877 11,458 54,877 11,458
Total 71,370 20,291 71,041 19,769

The effective interest rate on balances due from other credit institutions as at 31 December 2010 was 1,39%
(2009: 4,02 %).
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17 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

{a) Analysis of loans by original maturity

2010 2009 2010 2009

Group Group Bank Bank

LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'G00 LVL'000

Less than a year 150,253 186,199 137,370 156,253
More than a year 1,448,375 1,539,703 1,396,962 1,459,837
Accrued income 8,595 7,993 8,547 7,348
1,607,231 1,733,395 1,542,879 1,623,438

Less: provisions for loan impairment losses {160,880) {129,375} (142,076) (116,063)
Less: provisions for unpaid interest {1,570) (2,935) (1,570} (2,935)
Total 1,444,781 1,601,085 1,399,233 1,504,440

Loan portfolio includes loans secured by the Republic of Latvia Government guarantees of LVL 1,591

thousand.

The effective interest rate on loans as at 31 December 2010 was 3,75% (2009: 3,73%).

(b) Analysis of loans by client type

2010 2009 2010 2009

Group Group Bank Bank

LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL"000

Individuals 522,445 954,955 898,883 926,280

Private companies 653,985 746,954 612,846 665,289

Management/employees 12,575 13,647 11,943 12,750

Local government 9,308 10,321 9,158 10,321

Public companies 319 25 21 25

Finance institutions - - 1,481 1,425

Accrued Income 8,599 7,493 8,547 7,348

1,607,231 1,733,395 1,542,879 1,623,438

l.ess: provisions for [oan impairment losses (160,880) {129,375) {142,076) {116,063)

Less: provisions for unpaid interest (1,570) (2,935) (1,570} (2,935)

Total 1,444,781 1,601,085 1,399,233 1,504,440
{c) Analysis of locans by preducts

2010 2009 2010 2009

Group Group Bank Bank

LvL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000

Commercial loans 591,085 663,826 625,489 676,717

Mortgage loans 761,559 775,111 761,559 775,111

Private loans 125,965 135,474 125,965 135,474

Consumer loans 5,941 10,521 5,941 10,521

Leasing 99,022 123,235 318 532

Card loans 7,805 8,303 7,805 8,303

Other 7,255 9,432 7,255 9,432

Accrued income 8,599 7,493 8,547 7,348

1,607,231 1,733,395 1,542,879 1,623,438

Less: provisions for loan impairment losses (160,880) (129,375) (142,076) {116,063)

Less: provisions for unpaid interest {1,570) {2,935) {1,570) (2,935)

Total 1,444,781 1,601,085 1,399,233 1,504,440
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17 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS {continued)

(d) Analysis of loans by industry

2010 2009 2010 2009
Group Group Bank Bank
LVL'000 LVL'000 LVYL'000 LVL'000
Individuals 922,494 950,508 894,395 920,639
Management of rea estate 212,420 236,451 249,775 252,404
Manufackturing 105,560 135,902 86,960 110,084
Trade 108,560 121,446 92,443 104,151
Other 108,521 91,996 96,863 75,860
Transport 74,943 87,178 59,072 68,213
Construction i8,593 30,899 11,669 19,036
Agriculture 10,407 23,559 6,564 18,648
Management/employees i2,486 13,647 11,943 12,750
Non-profit and religious organizations 1,822 1,253 1,822 1,242
Total loans to residents 1,575,806 1,692,839 1,511,506 1,583,027
Loans issued to non-residents 22,826 33,063 22,826 33,063
Accrued income 8,599 7,493 8,547 7,348
1,607,231 1,733,395 1,542,879 1,623,438
Less: provisions for loan impairment losses (160,880) (129,375) {142,078} (116,063)
Less: provisions for unpaid interest {1,570) (2,935) {1,570} {2,935)
Total 1,444,781 1,601,085 1,399,233 1,504,440
{e) Analysis of loans by countries
2010 2009 2010 2009
Group Group Bank Bank
LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'Q00 LVL'G00
Latvia 1,575,774 1,692,839 1,511,474 1,583,027
Other countries 22,858 33,063 22,858 33,063
Accrued interest 8,599 7,493 8,547 7,348
Total 1,607,231 1,733,395 1,542,879 1,623,438
Less: allowance for loan impairment losses {160,880} {(129,375) {142,075) {116,063)
Less: allowance for unpaid interest (1,570}% (2,935) {1,570) (2,935)
Total 1,444,781 1,601,085 1,399,233 1,504,440
(f) Gross investment in finance lease
2010 2009 2010 2009
Group Group Bank Bank
LVL'0GO0 LVL'000 LVL 000 LVL'GO0O
Not later than 1 year 34,544 45,721 3 5
1 -5 years 55,365 83,655 - -
More than 5 years 327 2,336 - -
Total gross finance lease receivables 90,236 131,712 3 5
Unearned future interest income from investments in finance lease
2010 2009 2010 2009
Group Group Bank Bank
LVL'000C LVL'000 LVL'GOO LVL'000
Not later than 1 year 2,826 4,179 - 1
1 -5 vears 2,793 4,787 - -
More than 5 years 6 39 - -
Total unearned future interest income 5,625 9,005 - 1
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i7 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (continued)

Net investment in finance lease

2010 2009 2010 2009
Group Group Bank Bank
LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL’000 LVL'O00
Not later than 1 year 31,718 41,542 3 4
1 -5 years 52,572 78,868 - -
More than 5 years 321 2,297 - -
Total investment in finance lease 84,611 122,707 3 4
Less allowances for lpan impairment (13,452) {5,078} - -
Less allowances for homogenous groups of loans (1,637) (4,513) - -
Total net investment in finance lease 69,522 113,116 3 4
{g) The following table provides the division of loans and advances to customers by quality:
2010 2009 2010 2009
Group Group Bank Bank
LVL'000 LVL'000 LvVL000 LVL'000
Neither past due nor impaired 1,051,244 1,200,593 1,028,348 1,114,559
Past due but not impaired 154,138 202,733 133,883 187,753
Impaired 393,250 322,576 372,101 313,778
Accrued interest 8,599 7,493 8,547 7,348
Total gross loans and advances to customers 1,607,231 1,732,395 1,542,879 1,623,438
Less allowances for loan impairment (147,169) (89,178) {130,002)* (B0,379)*
Less allowances for homogenous groups of leans (13,711) (40,197) (12,074)* (35,684)*
Less unpaid interest {1,570) (2,935) (1,570} {2,935)
Total net loans and advances to customers 1,444,781 1,601,085 1,399,233 1,504,440

* Reclassification from provisions for homogenous groups of loans to specific provisions, see note 2{aa).

{h) The following table provides the division of loans and advances to customers neither past due

nor impaired:

Grades

Large Corporate
(turnover more than 20MEUR)

SME
{turnover less than 20MEUR)

Private individuals

2010 2009 2010 2009
Risk Group Group Bank Bank
classes LVL'000 LVL'cOQ LVL'Q00 LVL'000
Low - - - -
Medium 64,817 47,358 66,298 47,356
High 43,705 67,853 43,705 67,853
Not rated - - - -
Low 165 49,230 39,091 53,121
Medium 176,096 150,971 128,304 106,297
High 94,212 150,600 94,212 129,190
Not rated - 1,772 - 1,772
Low 315,577 426,054 315,577 426,054
Medium 273,882 208,955 273,882 208,955
High 67,279 70,650 67,279 70,650
Not rated 15,511 27,152 - 3,311
Total 1,051,244 1,200,593 1,028,348 1,114,559
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17 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (continued)

Commercial
Mortgage loans
Private loans
Consumer [pans
Leasing

Card loans
Other

Total

2010 2009 2010 2009
Group Group Bank Bank
LVL'O00 LVL'O00 LVL'000 LVL'G00
335,083 392,689 373,991 405,580
573,038 611,257 573,038 611,257
68,600 79,295 68,600 79,255
5,076 8,153 5,076 8,153
61,858 99,163 54 238
4,253 4,342 4,253 4,342
3,336 5,694 3,336 5,654
1,051,244 1,200,593 1,028,348 1,114,559

(i) The following table provides the division of loans and advances to customers past due but not
impaired of Group and Bank:

2010 2009 2010 2009
Group Group Bank Bank
LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LYL'000
Commercial loans
Past due up to 30 days 24,242 31,134 24,078 31,134
Past due 31-60 days 1,491 17,064 1,491 17,064
Past due 61-90 days 819 1,041 819 1,041
Past due over 90 days 4,429 35,905 4,429 35,905
Total 30,981 85,144 30,818 85,144
Mortgage foans
(issued to private individuals
secured with real estate
collateral)
Past due up to 30 days 54,368 51,284 54,368 51,284
Past due 31-60 days i8,917 18,282 18,917 18,282
Past due 61-90 days 6,587 5,689 6,587 5,689
Past due over 90 days 1,164 2,366 1,164 2,366
Total 81,036 77,621 81,036 77,621
Private loans
Past due up to 30 days 9,798 11,345 9,798 11,345
Past due 31-60 days 4,270 5,173 4,270 5,173
Past due 61-90 days 1,325 1,990 1,325 1,990
Past due over 90 days 2,311 1,780 2,311 1,780
Total 17,704 20,288 17,704 20,288
Consumer [oans
Past due up to 30 days 280 535 280 535
Past due 31-60 days - 1 - 1
Past due 61-90 days - - - -
Past due over 90 days - - - -
Total 280 536 280 536
Leasing
Past due up to 30 days 13,173 1,405 11 30
Past due 31-60 days 2,729 581 3 18
Past due 61-90 days 4,210 962 7 6
Past due over 90 days - 12,086 - -
Total 20,112 15,034 21 54
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17 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (continued)

Card loans

Past due up to 30 days
Past due 31-60 days
Past due 61-90 days
Past due over S0 days

Other loans

Past due up to 30 days
Past due 31-60 days
Past due 61-90 days
Past due over 90 days

Past due up to 30 days
Past due 31-60 days
Past due 61-90 days
Past due over 90 days

Total gross loans and

advances to customers past

due but not impaired
Fair value of collateral

2010 2009 2010 2009

Group Group Bank Bank

LVL"000 LVL'000 Lvi'ooo LVL'000

2,727 2,794 2,727 2,794

Total 2,727 2,794 2,727 2,794
630 596 630 596

206 173 206 173

242 60 242 60

220 487 220 487

Total 1,298 1,316 1,298 1,316
105,218 99,093 91,892 97,718

27,613 41,274 24,887 40,711

13,183 9,742 B,980 8,786

8,124 52,624 B,124 40,538

Total 154,138 202,733 133,883 187,753
154,138 202,733 133,883 187,753

156,851 334,203 156,851 334,203

The following table provides the division of impaired loans and advances to customers of Group and

Bank

Commercial
Mortgage loans
Private lcans
Consumer loans
Leasing

Card loans
Other

Total

2010 2009 201¢ 2009
Group Group Banlk Bank
LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'cO0 LVL'000
225,020 189,713 220,680 185,993
107,484 86,235 107,484 86,235
39,661 35,891 39,661 35,891
586 1,832 586 1,832
17,052 5,317 243 239
825 1,166 825 1,166
2,622 2,422 2,622 2,422
393,250 322,576 372,101 313,778

33



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

AS DnB NORD Banka
Consolidated and Bank Financial Statements

i7 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (continued)

for the year ended 31 December 2010

G) The following table provides the division of Group's loans and advances te customers

individually impaired:

Commercial
loans
LVL'000
31 Pecember 2010
Impaired loans 225,020
Fair value of
collateral 139,230
31 December 2009
Impaired loans 189,713
Fair value of
coellateral 120,005

Mortgage
loans
LVL'000

107,484

75,198

86,235

63,616

Private
loans
LVL'000

39,661

25,401

35,891

24,413

Consumer
loans
LVL'000

586

169

1,832

466

Leasing

LVL'0G0

17,053

106

5,317

105

Card
loans
LVL'000

825

1,166

Qther
loans
LVL000

2,621

1,655

2,422

1,432

The following table provides the division of Bank's loans and advances to customers individually

impaired:
Commercial
loans
LVL'000
31 December 2010
Impaired loans 220,680
Fair value of
collateral 139,230
31 December 2009
Impaired lcans 185,993
Fair vatue of
collateral 120,005

Mortgage
loans
LVL'000

107,484

75,198

86,235

63,616

Private
loans
LVL'000

39,661

25,401

35,891

24,413

Consumer
loans
LVL'000

586

159

1,832

466

Leasing

LVL'O0C

243

106

239

105

Card
Loans
LVL‘000

825

1,166

Status past due defined based on maximum number of delay days (principal or interest).
If the borrower delays repayment of both interest and principal amount of the loan (or share thereof), the
longest of the both delay periods is specified.
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Other
loans
LvVL00C0

2,622

1,655

2,422

1,432

Total

LVL'000

393,250

241,759

322,576

210,037

Total

LVL'000

372,101

241,759

313,778

210,037
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17 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (continued)

{k) The following table provides the division of Group's restructured loans and advances to
customers

Information regarding all kinds of restructured loans Included (impalired, past due but not impaired and neither

past due nor impaired)

2010 2009 2010 2009

Group Group Bank Bank

LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000

Commercial 195,493 B6,579 195,493 86,579
Mortgage loans 134,053 76,331 134,053 76,331
Private loans 29,060 17,242 29,060 17,242
Consumer loans 572 476 572 476
Leasing 23 27 23 27
Card loans - - - -
Other 1,452 1,227 1,452 1,227
Total 360,653 181,832 360,653 181,882

Loan is considered as restructured if at least one of following action has been performed:

-There are postponed or cancelled principal payment for the Loan for period that is longer than 90 calendar
days or repeatedly postponed or cancelled principal payments and total period in last year exceeds 90
cailendar days;

-There are postponed, cancelled or capitalized interest payments for the Loan for peried that is longer than 90
caiendar days or repeatedly postponed, cancelled or capitalized interest payments and total period in last
year exceeds 90 calendar days;

-Change of Loan principal repayment schedule that resuit in decrease of monthly payments by more than 30%;

-There Is repossessed collateral or other assets for full or partial locan repayment;

-Substitution of initial borrower or attraction of additional borrower if in case attraction of additional borrower
would not be performed that would result in overdue of payments more than 90 days;

-Decrease of loan interest rate due to financial difficulties of the customer.
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iB FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets designated at fair

value through profit or loss 2010 2009 2010 2009
Group Group Bank Bank
LVIL. 000 LVL'GOO0 LVL'000 LVL'000

Debt securities
lLatvian government securities 110,248 56,815 110,248 56,815
Latvian mortgage bonds - 1,421 - 1,421
QOECD financial institutions bonds 28,144 61,070 28,144 61,070
Total debt securities 138,392 119,306 138,392 119,306

Investment funds

DNB NORD Mérka fonds ) 375 367 375 367
Total investment funds 375 367 375 367
Total 138,767 119,673 138,767 119,673
2010 2009

Moody's
equivalent LvL'0o00 % LVL'000 %

grades

High grade

Risk rating class 1 Aaa - 0% 10,701 9%
Risk rating class 2 Aai-A3 28,144 20% 46,862 35%
Risk rating class 3 Baal-Baa2 - 0% 1,421 1%
Risk rating class 4 Baa3 21,774 16% 10,575 5%
Not rated £88,849* 64% 50,114 42%
Total 138,767 100% 119,673 100%

* Latvian Government T-bills 2010 - 78,963 (2009: 43,177)

The effective interest rate on securities at fair value through profit or loss as at 31 December 2010 was 3,36%
(2009: 5,66%).
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19 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

The Bank's investments in subsidiaries are specified as follows:

Share Bank's Investment Investment

capital share value value

2010 2009

LYL'000 (%) LVL'000 LVL'000

SIA DaB NORD Lizings 2700 100 2700 300
IPAS DnB NORD Fondi 420 100 667 667
SIA Skanstes 12 830 100 830 180
SIA SALVUS* 810 100 810 810
SIA SALVUS 2* 20 100 20 20
SIA SALVUS 3* 20 100 20 20
4,800 100 5,047 1,997

* Sybsidiaries of AS DnB NORD Banka established with an aim to ensure sales and/or management of real
estate foreclosed In the course of compulsory and/or voluntary collection proceedings.

20 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group and the Bank utilises the following derivative instruments:

Currency forwards represent commitments to purchase foreign and domestic currency.

Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to exchange one set of cash flows for another, Swaps
result in an economic exchange of currencies or interest rates.

Interest rate options are instruments that give the holder the rights but not the obligations to exchange
pericdicallty one set of interest rate cash flows for another.

The Group's and the Bank's credit risk represents the potential cost to replace the forward or swap contracts if
counterparties fail to perform their obligation. To control the level of credit risk taken, the Group and the Bank
assesses counterparties using the same techniques as for its lending activities.

The notional amounts of certain types of financial instruments provide a basis for comparison with instruments
recognised on off balance sheet but do not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved or the
current fair value of the instruments and do not indicate the Group’s and the Bank's exposure to credit risks,
The derivative instruments become favourable or unfavourable as a result of fluctuations In market interest
rates or foreign exchange rates relative to their terms.

The noticnal amounts and fair values of derivative instruments held are set out in the following table:

2010 2009
Contract / Fair value Contract / Fair value
notional Assets Liabilities ~ fononal Assets Liabilities
LVL'G00 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'G00 LVL'000
Derivatives held for trading:
- currency swaps 212,338 4,215 1,357 195,323 4,950 4
- interest rate swaps 295,895 2,263 5,566 418,809 3,285 6,952
- forwards 3,711 3 15 2,634 8 6
- options 184,294 2,031 2,178 154,766 1,524 1,734
Derivatives designated as
fair value hedges
- interest rate swaps 97,198 - 6,303 113,925 - 8,009
Total 8,512 15,419 9,767 16,745
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21 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Movement table of intangible assets of the Group and the Bank for 2010 is as follows:

Licences

and ) Tt:stal Licences . T9ta|
software intangible and intangible
Goodwill assets software assetls
Group Group Group Bank Bank
LVL'000 LVL'0Q0 LVL'000D LVL'000 LVL'000
Historical cost
31 December 2009 3,245 247 2,492 2,892 2,892
Additions 189 - 189 175 175
Disposals and write-offs {51} - (51) (24) (24)
31 December 2010 3,383 247 3,630 3,043 3,043
Amortisation
31 December 2009 1,953 - 1,953 1,746 1,746
Amortisation for the period 517 - 517 460 460
disposals and write-offs {47} - (47) (24) (24)
31 December 2010 2,423 - 2,423 2,182 2,182
Net beok value
31 December 2009 1,292 247 1,53¢% 1,146 1,146
31 December 2010 960 247 1,207 861 861

Intangible assets include advance payments for acquired intangible assets as of 31 December 2010 in amount
of L.VL 2,7 thousand (2009: LVL 77,6 thousand).

Movement table of intangible assets of the Group and the Bank for 2009 is as follows:

Licences Total Licences Total
and . : . p
software ) intangible and intangible
Goodwill assets software assets
Group Group Group Bank Bank
LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL000 LVL'000 LvL ‘0G0
Historical cost
31 December 2008 2,408 247 2,655 2,115 2,115
Additions 837 - 837 777 777
Disposals and write-offs - - - - -
31 December 2009 3,245 247 3,492 2,892 2,892
Amortisation
31 December 2008 1,441 - 1,441 1,306 1,306
Amortisation for the period 512 - 512 440 440
Disposals and write-offs - - - - -
31 December 2009 1,953 - 1,953 1,746 1,746
Net book value
31 December 2008 967 247 1,214 809 809
31 December 2009 1,292 247 1,539 1,146 1,146
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22 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Movement table of property and equipment of the Group for 2010 is as follows:

Leasehold Opera-
Land and Construc- Office improve- ting
buildings tion equipment Vehicles ments lease Total
LVL000 LVYL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000
Historical cost or
valuation
31 December 2009 3,533 11,132 9,706 333 2,519 18,252 45,475
Additions 13 5,089 2,918 13 224 - 8,257
Disposals and write-offs - - (1,232) - (319) (9,737) (11,288)
Reclassification 16,977 {16,221) - - - - 756
31 December 2010 20,523% - 11,392 346 2,424 8,515 43,200
Depreciation
31 December 2009 108 - 6,120 233 1,001 8,758 16,220
Depreciation for the
year 169 - 1,786 40 291 1,981 4,267
Disposals and write-offs - - (1,047 - (210) (5,776} (7,033)
31 December 2010 277 - 6,859 273 1,082 4,963 13,454
Net book value
31 December 2009 3,425 11,132 3,586 100 1,518 9,494 29,255
31 December 2010 20,246 - 4,533 73 1,342 3,552 29,746
Movement table of property and equipment of the Bank for 2010 is as follows:
Land and Office t easehold
buildings equipment Vehicles improvements Totai
LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000
Historical cost or valuation
31 December 2009 1,076 9,554 333 2,478 13,441
Additions 13 2,768 13 7 2,801
Disposals and write-offs - (1,030) - {(318) (1,348}
31 December 2010 1,089 11,292 346 2,167 14,894
Depreciation
31 December 2009 108 6,030 233 993 7.364
Depreciation for the vear 10 1,758 40 254 2,063
Disposals and write-offs - (952) - (210} {1,162)
31 December 2010 118 6,837 273 1,037 8,265
Net book value
31 December 2009 968 3,524 100 1,485 6,077
31 December 2010 971 4,455 73 1,130 6,629

Property and equipment include advance payments and stock as of 31 December 2010 in amount of LVL 174,7

thousand (2009; LVL 1,8 thousand).

* Substantial part of the amount related to commissioning of the new building in the middie of 2010. Value of

the building is disclosed as fair value,
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22 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Movement table of property and equipment of the Group for 2009 is as follows:

Leasehold Opera-
Land and Construc- Office improve- ting
buildings tion equipment Vehicles ments lease Total
LVL'Q00 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'GOO LVL'000 LYL'000D tVL'000
Historical cost or
valuation
31 December 2008 3,507 2,128 9,175 339 2,620 25,516 43,285
Additions 26 9,004 870 21 -45 - 9,966
Disposals and write-offs - - (339 (27) {1456) {7,264 (7,776)
31 becember 2009 3,533 11,132 9,706 333 2,519 18,252 45,475
Depreciation
31 December 2008 o8 - 4,750 210 815 8,416 14,289
Depreciation for the
year 10 - 1,702 50 303 3,568 5,633
Disposals and write-offs - (332) (27) {(117) {3,226) (3,702)
31 December 2009 108 - 6,120 233 1,001 B,758 16,220
Net book value
31 December 2008 3,409 2,128 4,425 129 1,805 17,100 28,996
31 December 2009 3,425 11,132 3,586 100 1,518 9,494 29,255
Movement table of property and equipment of the Bank for 2009 is as follows:
Land and Office Leasehold
buildings equipment Vehicles improvements Total
LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL 000
Historical cost or valuation
31 December 2008 1,050 5,012 339 2,620 i3,621
Additions 26 858 21 4 909
Disposals and write-offs - {316) (27} (148) (489)
31 Pecember 2009 1,076 9,554 333 2,478 13,441
Depreciation
31 December 2008 a8 4,665 210 815 5,788
Depreciation for the year 10 1,674 50 295 2,029
Disposals and write-offs - {309) (271 (117) (453)
31 December 2608 108 6,030 223 993 7,364
Net book value
31 December 2608 952 4,347 129 1,805 7,233
31 December 2009 968 3,524 100 1,485 6,077
If buildings would be recorded at cost their value would be as follows:
2010 2009
Bank Bank
LVL'000 LVL'000
Cost 957 944
Accumulated deprecation {103) (94}
Net book value 854 850
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22 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Minimum lease payments receivable under operating leases 2010 2009

Group Group

LVL'O00 LVL'000

Not fater than 1 year 2,i71 2,254

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 1,378 1,702

Later than 5 years - -

Total 3,549 3,956
23 DEFERRED EXPENSES AND ACCRUED INCOME

2010 2009 2010 2009

Group Group Bank BRank

LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'00C

Accrued income 187 241 114 183

Deferred expenses 4593 455 466 379

G680 696 580 562

24 INVESTMENT PROPERTY

SPV (Special Purpose Vehicle/Entity) chooses the fair value model as measurement of real estate property. All
of its investment property measure at fair value. FV is determined based on evaluation of external experis and
market prices close to year end. Evaluation is made for each real estate property. Assumptions for future NPV
calculations: discount rate — in range of 8-149%, estimated benchmark for market grown — in range 3-5%

yearly,
The structure of investment property by type is following:
o 40% of investment property are apartments, parking places;
s  19% - buildings, private houses;
e 41% - fand plots.
The structure of investment property by geographic location:
«  28% of investment property are located in Riga;
60% - in Riga region (incl. Jurmala);
+ 2% - other regions,

25 OTHER ASSETS

2010 2008 2010 2009

Group Group Bank BSank

LVL'000 LVL'0GO LVL'000 LVL'a00

Foreclosed properties® 3,253 850 3,253 850
Guarantee deposits for auctions** 4,445 - 1,184 -
Prepayments and overpaid taxes 2,096 518 275 -
Credit card claims and other payment services 999 1,209 999 1,209
Short term debts 737 1,118 737 464
Other 2,368 5,344 1,373 1,993
Total 13,898 9,039 7,821 4,516

* Foreclosed property provided for sale in short time.

** Guarantee deposits paid by Bank and subsidiaries to enforcement officers for collateral auction.
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26 PROVISIONS FOR CREDIT LOSSES

Group provisions for
impairment

losses and other
assets

31 December 2008

Fully provided for and
written off
Charge to Income
statement :

- individual loans and
assets

- homogenous groups
of loans
Released during the
year

Exchange rate difference

31 December 2009

Fully provided for and
written off
Charge to income
statement:

- indlvidual loans and
asseis

« homogenous groups
of loans
Released during the
period
Interest Income due to
shortening of
discounting period
Provisions internal
mavement

Exchange rate difference
31 December 2010

Consu- Private

Loans Comm- Mort- mer Card and Other
Fotal erclal gace loans loans Leasing loans cther IBNR assets Total
LVL'000 LVL'000 LvL'D00 LvL'aco LVL'000  LVL'000 LVL000 LVL'00D LVL'000  LVL'000
27,691 13,640 5,600 1,878 2,543 447 3,583 - - 27,691
(4,571} {1,314) - (2,142) {632) (389) {94) - - (4,571)
119,342 65,785 27,374 1,746 7,917 809 11,988 3,719 14,555 133,897
83,430 62,986 6,253 1,746 3,944 809 7,652 - 14,555 97,985
35,912 2,803 21,121 - 3,973 - 4,206 3,719 - 35,912
(9,879) (5,941) (2,295) (222) (231) (165) (1,025) - - (9,879)
(273) (270} {1) (3) - (1} 2 - (1) {274)
132,310 71,904 30,678 1,257 9,597 701 14,454 3,719 14,554 146,864
(22,123) (19,173} - (1,654) - (754) {542} - = (22,123)
67,970 50,292 10,213 o908 1,046 638 4,823 - 849 68,819
67,970 50,292 10,213 Qo8 1,046 688 4,823 - 849 68,819
(16,900)  (13,310) (118) (80) (1,578) (149) (880)  {785) - (16,900)
(5,191) {4,250} (407) - - - (534) - -~ (5,191)
6,024 - - - 6,024 - - - {6,024) -
359 352 - - - - 7 - 75 434
162 449 85,815 40,366 431 15,089 486 17,328 2,934 9,454 171,903
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26 PROVISIONS FOR CREDIT LOSSES (continued)

Off-
Bank provisions for Private balance
impairment Loans Comm~  Mortgage Consumer Card and sheet
tosses and other assets Total erclal feans loans Leasing loans other IBNR liabilities Total
LVL000 LVL'O0O LVL'COO LVL'000 LVE'00D LVL'000  LVL'000 LVL'000  LVL'000 LVL 000
31 becember 2008 25,919 13,640 5,600 1,878 771 447 3,583 - 1,139 27,058
Fully provided for and
written off (3,939) (1,314) . (2,142} - (389) {94) - - (3,939)
Charge to income
statement: 107,171 62,075 27,374 1,746 (54G) B0O9 11,988 3,719 26,727 133,898
- individual loans and
assets 75,772 59,272 6,253 1,746 - 809 7,652 - 22,214 97,986
- hemogenous groups
of loans 31,399 2,803 21,121 - (540} - 4,256 3,719 4,513 35,912
Released during the year (9,880} (5,942) (2,295) (222} (231) (165) {1,025) - - (9,88B0)
Exchange rate difference (273} {270) (1) (3} - (1} 2 - - (273)
31 December 2009 118,998 68,189 30,678 1,257 - 701 14,454 3,719 27,866 146,864
Fully provided for and
written off (22,123} {19,173) - (1,654) - (754} (542) - - (22,123)
Charge to Incormne
statement: 66,924 50,292 10,213 908 - 688 4,823 - 596 67,620
- Individual loans and
assels 66,924 50,2592 16,213 o8 - 688 4,823 - 696 67,620
- hamogenous groups
of loans - - - - - - - - - -
Released during the
perlod (15,322)  (13,310) {118) (8m) - (149) (880) (785) {(1,578) (16,900)
Interest income due to
shortening of discounting
period (5,191} {4,250 (407) - - - {534) - - (5,191)
Exchange rate difference 359 352 - - - - 7 - - 359
31 December 2010 143,645 82,100 40,366 ~ 431 - 486 17,328 2,934 26,984 170,629

Income statement item "Net allowances for impairment loss" also inciudes recovered loans and other assets
that were written-off in previous periods in ameunt of LVL 79 thousand (2009: LVL 84 thousand).

* Provisions made for lease objects in hold are included in this position.

43



AS DnB NORD Banka

Consolidated and Bank Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2010

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

27 DUE TO OTHER CREDIT INSTITUTIONS

2010 2009 2010 2009
Group Group Bank Bank
Demand depaosits LVL000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000
Republic of Lakvia credit institutions 9,536 51,787 5,536 51,787
QECD credit institutions 31,307 412 31,307 412
Non-OECD credit institutions 364 2,337 364 2,337
Total demand deposits 41,207 54,536 41,207 54,536
Term deposits
Republic of Latvia credit institutions 25,622 21,428 25,622 21,428
OECD credit institutions 1,055,066 1,215,038 932,075 994,147
Non-QECD credit institutions 3,283 14,891 3,283 14,891
1,083,971 1,251,257 960,980 1,030,466
Accrued interest 3,961 4,613 3,642 4,456
Total term deposits 1,087,932 1,255,970 964,622 1,034,922
Total deposits 1,129,139 1,310,506 1,005,829 1,089,458
28 DUE TO CUSTOMERS
Analysis of deposits by maturity and client type
2010 2009 2010 2009
Group Group Bank Bank
LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000
Demand deposits
Private companies 98,503 77,501 108,182 145,349
Individuals 71,308 65,125 71,308 65,125
State institutions 3,569 2,289 3,569 2,289
Funds in transit 6,265 4,596 6,265 4,596
Non-residents non-QECD 4,846 2,727 4 846 2,727
Non-residents OECD 4,804 3,101 4,804 3,101
Total demand deposits 189,295 155,339 198,974 223,187
Term deposit accounts
Individuals 86,580 113,026 86,580 113,026
Private companies 182,294 97,265 183,099 97,772
State institutions 48 5,570 48 5,570
Non-residents non-QECD 19,587 10,368 19,587 10,368
Non-residents OECD 1,872 3,310 1,872 3,310
Accrued interest 1,270 1,713 1,277 1,731
Total term deposits 291,651 231,252 292,463 231,777
Total deposits and transit funds 480,946 386,591 491,437 454,964
29 DEFERRED INCOME AND ACCRUED EXPENSES
2010 2009 2010 2009
Group Group Bank Bank
LVL'00G LVL’000 LVL'000 LVL'000
Accrued expenses 758 508 693 474
Other deferred income - 1,513 - 1,513
758 2,021 693 1,987
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30 SUBORDINATED LOANS
2010 2009 2010 2009
Group Group Bank Bank
LVL000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000

Loan providers

Norddeutsche Landesbank Girozentrale - 19,106 - 15,106
Bank DnB NORD A/S 35,386 35,375 35,386 35,375
DnB NOR Bank ASA 19,102 - 19,102 -
54,488 54,481 54,488 54,481

All subordinated loans are denominated in Euro (EUR).
Subordinated loans received in the years 2004-2010:
In the year 2010 the Bank did not receive new subordinated loans.

In January 2004, the Bank received EUR 14 million {LVL 9,839 million) subordinated loan from
Norddeutsche Landesbank Girczentrale repayable in full on 15 January 2014, The interest rate on the
ivan is equal to 6-month EURIBOR + 0.61%p.a. On 23 December 2010, in accordance to the Novation
Agreement, Norddeutsche Landesbank Girozentrale transferred its rights under this subordinated foan
agreement to DnB NOR Bank ASA.

In September 2005, the Bank received EUR 13 million (LVL 9,137million) subordinated loan from
Norddeutsche Landesbank Girozentrale repayable in full on 15 September 2015. The interest rate on the
loan is equal to 6-month EURIBOR + 0.60% p.a. On 23 December 2010, in accordance to the Novation
Agreement, Norddeutsche Landeshank Girozentrale transferred its rights under this subordinated [oan
agreement to DnB NOR Bank ASA.

In the year 2006, the Bank received two subordinated loans from Bank DnB NORD A/S: in August 2006,
the Bank received EUR 16million (LVL 31,244 millicn) subordinated loan and in November 2006, the
Bank got EUR 7 million {LVL 4,920 millicn) subordinated loan. Both loans shall be repaid in full in 2016.
The interest rate applicable to these lpans is equal to 6-month EURIBOR + 0.60% p.a.

In February 2007, the Bank received EUR 7 million {LVL 4,920 million) subordinated loan from Bank DnB
NORD A/S repayable in full on 27 February 2017. The interest rate on the loan is equal to 6-month
EURIBOR + 0.60% p.a.

In the year 2009, the Bank received EUR 20 million (LVL 14,056 million) subordinated loan from Bank
DnB NORD A/S repayable in full on 30 April 2015, The interest rate on the loan is equal to 6-month
EURIBOR + 4.00% p.a.

31 OTHER LIABILITIES
2010 2009 2010 2009
Group Group Bank Bank
LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL000 LVL'000
Accrued liabilities 1,271 1,197 1,015 200
Accounts payable 1,354 633 B -
Other short-term liabilities 2,240 2,728 463 508
4,905 4,558 1,478 1,408

32 PROVISIONS

2010 2009 2010 2009
Group Group Bank Banik
LVL'00 LVYL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000
Provisions for off-balance sheet liabilities - - 26,983 27,865
Other provisions 383 - 383 -
383 - 27,366 27,865

Provisions were made for off-balance sheet liabilities — guarantee, issued by the Bank for the financing of the
subsidiary DnB NORD Lizings SIA. :

Calculations of the write downs were made based on the guality of the assefs of the DnB NORD Lizings SIA
using the same approach as in the Bank.
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33 SHARE CAPITAL

As of Pecember 31, 2010 registered and fully paid-in AS DnB NORD Banka equity capital amounted to LVL
134,360,500.00 and consisted of 134,360,900 shares (par value per share being then and now LVL 1,00). All
AS DnB NORD Banka shares had equal rigits to receiving the dividend, liguidation guota and voting rights at
the shareholders’ meeting. All AS DnB NORD Banka shares were nominal shares.

As of December 31, 2010 100% of AS DnB NORD Banka shares were owned by Bank DnB NORD A/S, whereas
100% of Bank DnB NORD A/S capital as of December 31, 2010 was owned by DnB NOR Bank ASA.

34 RESERVE CAPITAL

In order to Increase the Tier I Capital by way of increasing the reserve capital of the Bank, DnB NORD Bank A/S
in 2010 made three payments totalling to EUR 35 million (LVEL 24,81 million): EUR 10 million (LVL 7,09 miition)
in February, EUR 10 million (LVL 7,09 million) in June and EUR 15 million {(LVL 10,63 million) in September into
the reserve capital of the Bank.

35 OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

2010 2009 2010 2009
Group Group Bank Bank
LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000
Memorandum items
Contingent liabilities
guarantees 23,960 22,192 146,951 243,083
Commitments
Loan issuing commitments 69,387 49,329 97,934 78,369
other liabilities 2,504 3,902 2,504 3,902
fetters of credit 349 1,618 349 1,618

The Bank guarantees include the AS DnB NORD Banka guarantee for DnB NORD Lizings SIA in amount of LVL
122,991 thousand as at 31 December 2010.

36 MAXIMUM EXPOSURE TO CREDIT RISK BEFORE COLLATERAL HELD OR OTHER CREDIT

ENHANCEMENTS
2010 2009 2010 2009
Group Group Bank Bank
LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL000 LVL'000
Credit risk exposures relating to on-
balance sheet assets are as follows:
Balances due from banks 71,370 23,291 71,041 15,769
Loans and advances to customers 1,439,799 1,594,201 1,394,251 1,497,556
Securities designated at fair value through
profit and loss 138,767 119,673 138,767 119,673
Derivative financial instruments 8,512 9,767 8,512 9,767
Other assets 8,550 7,071 4,216 7,071
Credit risk exposures relating to off-
balance sheet items are as follows:
Contingent liablilities 23,960 22,192 146,951 243,083
Financial commitments 349 1,618 349 1,618

37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are censidered to be related if cne party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant
influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions.

Related parties are defined as shareholders, members of the Supervisory Council and the Management Board,
key management personnel, their close relatives and companies in which they have a controlling interest as
well as associated companies.

A number of banking transactions are entered into with related parties in the normal course of business. These
include loans, deposits, forelgn currency transactions and financial instruments. These transactions were
carried out on commercial terms and at market rates. The volumes of related party transactions, outstanding
balances at the year end, and relating income and expense for the year are as follows:
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37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Due from related parties 2010 2009 2010 2009
Group Group Bank Bank
LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000
Due from parent companies:
DnB NOR Bank ASA 43,332 1,573 43,332 1,573
Bank DnB NORD A/S 50 680 50 680
NORD/LB Group* - 29,299 - 25,299
Due from subsidiaries:
DnB NORD Lizings SIA - - 1,482 1,428
SIA Skanstes 12 - - 20,892 14,355
SIA Salvus - - 17,929 3,483
SIA Salvus 3 - - 139 -
Due from other related parties:
AB DnB NORD Bankas 314 7 314 7
DnB NORD Polska 6 23 [ 23
Bank DnB NORD A/S Eesti filiaal 183 4,933 183 4,933
bnB NORD IT A/S - 286 - 286
Balances due from related parties 43,885 36,801 84,327 56,067

Due to related parties

2010 2009 2010 2009
Group Group Bank Bank
LVL'O00 LVL'000 LVL'GOO LVL'000
Due to parent companies:
DnB NOR Bank ASA 629,636 494,370 629,636 494,370
Bank DnB NORD A/S 35,454 35,413 35,454 35,413
NORD/LB Group* - 709,325 - 489,200
Due to subsidiaries:
DnB NORD Lizings SIA - 522 9,242 67,617
IPAS DnB NORD Fondi - - 840 526
SIA Skanstes 12 “ - & 42
SIA Salvus - . 375 149
STA Salvus 2 - - 14 20
SIA Salvus 3 - - 13 20
Due to other related partles: -
AB DnB NORD Bankas 3,701 13,123 3,701 13,123
DnB NORD Polska - - - -
Bank DnB NORD A/S Eesti filiaal 387 4,994 387 4,984
Balances due to related parties 669,178 1,257,747 679,668 1,105,474

During the reporting period Bank sold foreclosed property to SIA Salvus in amount of LVI. 828 thousand and to
SIA Salvus 3 in amount of LVE 140 thousand, as a result Bank recognise losses amounted to LVL 103 thousand.
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37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS {continued)

The Group' s and Bank’ s income/expenses from transactions with related parties are analysed as follows:

2010 2009 2010 2009
Group Group Bank Bank
LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVvL000

Interest received for money market
deposits/ loans 2,604 5,110 1,041 1,540
Parent companies 21 34 21 34
Subsidiaries 2,365 4,846 802 1,276
Other Related parties 218 230 218 230
Income received from derivatives - 10,932 - 10,932
Parent companies - 10,933 - 10,933
Subsidiaries - - - -
Other Related partles - (1) - (1)
Derivative revaluation result 2,186 - 2,186 -
Parent companies 2,030 - 2,030 -
Subsidiaries - - - -
Cther Related parties 156 - 156 -
Commission received 74 999 3,523 3,114
Parent companies - 18 - 18
Subsidiaries - - 3,449 2,115
Other Related parties 74 981 74 981
Dividends - - 80 -
Parent companies - - - -
Subsidiaries - - 80 -
Other Related parties - - - -
Other income 7 a2 243 96
Parent companies - B6 - 86
Subsidiaries - - 236 4
Other Related parties 7 6 7 6

Interest paid on money market

deposits/loans (16,213) (27,684) (16,662) (28,222)
Parent companies {15,803) (27,134} {15,803) (27,134)
Subsidiaries - - {449) (538)
Other Related parties {(410) (550) (410} {550)
Expenses from derivatives (6,266) - (6,266) -
Parent companies (6,268) - (6,268) -
Subsidiaries - - - -
Other Related parties 2 - 2 -
Derivative revaluation result - (3,230) - (3,230)
Parent companies - (3,098) - (3,008)
Subsidiaries - - - -
Other Related parties - {132) - (132)
Interest paid on subordinated loan (1,384) (1,652) (1,384) {1,652)
Parent companies (1,384) (1,652) (1,384) (1,652)
Subsidiaries - - - -
Qther Related parties - - - -
Commission paid (82) (B7) (82) {87)
Parent companies (79) (86) (79) (86)
Subsidiaries - - - -
Other Related parties 3) (1} (3) (1)
Other expenses (3,240) (1,100) (3,691) (1,162)
Parent companies {558) {1,921) (558) (1,921)
Subsidiaries - - {451) (62)
Other Related parties (2,682)%% B21 (2,682)** 821
(22,314) (16,620) (21,012) {(18,671)

* NORD/LB is not related party since 23 December 2010.
** QOther expenses include penalty fee for IT development project cancellation in amount of LVL 2,328
thousand.

As at 31 Decermnber 2010 loans issued to key management personnel amounted to LVL 1,401 thousand (2009:
LVL 1,244 thousand).
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38 FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Where the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded on the statement of financial position
cannot be derived from active markets, the are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include
the use of mathematical models. The inputs to these models are derived from observable market data where
possible, but where observable market data are not available, judgment is required to establish fair values.

The Bank uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by
valuation technique:

Level 1: quoted {unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are
observable, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not
based on observable market data.

Group 2010 2009

Carrying Carrying

value Fair value value Fair value

LVL'000 L.VL'000 LVL000 LVL'000
Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 72,736 72,736 95,876 95,876
Due from other credit institutions
(demand) 16,493 16,493 8,833 8,833
Derivatives 8,512 8,012 9,767 9,767
Financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss 138,767 138,767 119,673 119,673
Financial assets available-for-sale 10 10 10 10
Due from other credit institutions
{term) 54,877 54,877 11,458 11,458
Loans to customers 1,444,781 1,366,037 1,601,085 1,470,511
Other assets 8,550 8,550 7,590 7,590
Total financial assets 1,744,726 1,665,982 1,854,292 1,723,718
Liabilities
Due to credit institutions 1,129,139 1,129,139 1,310,506 1,310,506
Derivatives 15,419 15,419 16,745 16,745
Deposits and other financial liabilities 48(),946 480,343 386,591 379,652
Subordinated lcan 54,488 54,488 54,481 54,481
Cther {iabilities 5,186 5,186 4,558 4,558
Total financial liabilities 1,685,178 1,684,575 1,772,881 1,765,942
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38 FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

Bank 2010 2009
Carrying Carrying
value Fair value value Fair value
LVEL'000 LYL'000 LVL'GCO LVL'000
Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 72,736 72,736 95,876 95,876
Due from cther credit institutions
(demand) 16,164 16,164 8,311 8,311
Derivatives 8,512 8,512 9,767 9,767
Financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss 138,767 138,767 119,673 119,673
Financial assets available-for-sale 10 10 10 10
Due from other credit institutions
(term} 54,877 54,877 11,458 11,458
Loans ko customers 1,399,233 1,272,283 1,504,440 1,404,844
Cther assets 4,216 4,216 5,064 5,064
Total financial assets 1,694,515 1,567,565 1,754,599 1,655,003
Liabilities
Pue to credit institutions 1,005,829 1,005,829 1,089,458 1,089,458
Derivatives 15,419 15,419 16,745 16,745
Deposits and other financial liabilities 491,437 490,832 454,964 447,952
Subordinated loan 54,488 54,488 54,481 54,481
Other liabilities 1,759 1,759 1,407 1,407
Total financial liabilities 1,568,932 1568,327 1,617,055 1,610,043
Group 2010
Balance
Level 1 Level 2 tevel 3 Total sheet
LVYL'000 LVYL'0CO LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'0D0
Assets
Derivatives - 8,512 - 8,512 8,512
Financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss 36,794 101,598 375 138,767 138,767
Financial assets available-for-sale - 10 - 10 10
Total 36,794 110,120 375 147,289 147,289
Liabilities
Derivatives - 15,419 15,419 15,419
Total - 15,419 15,419 15,419
Balance
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total sheet
LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000
Assets
Derivatives - 8,512 - 8,512 8,512
Financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss 36,794 101,598 375 138,767 138,767
Financial assets available-for-sate - 10 - 10 10
Tatal 36,794 110,120 375 147,298 147,289
Liabilities
Derivatives - 15,419 - 15,419 15,419
Total - 15,419 - 15,419 15,419
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38 FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

Group and Bank 2009
Balance
Leval 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total sheet
LLVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'QOG LVL'000
Assets
Derivatives - 9,767 - 9,767 9,767
Financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss 65,981 53,692 - 119,673 119,673
Financial assets available-for-sale - 10 - 10 10
Total 65,981 63,469 - 125,335 125,335
Liabilities
Derivatives - 16,745 - 16,745 16,745
Total - 16,745 - 16,745 16,745

39 CAPITAL ADEQUACY

The capital of DnB NORD Group is calculated and allocated for the risk coverage following the AS DnB NORD
Banka Group Procedure on Minimum Capital Requirements Calculation and AS DnB NORD Banka Group Policy
for the Assessment of Internal Capital Adequacy (ICAAP). The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

1) to comply with the capital requirements set by the Financial and Capital Market Commission as well as
the higher target capital requirements set by major shareholder,

2} to safeguard the Bank’s and the Group's ability to continue as a going concern so that it can provide
returns for sharehelders and benefits for other stakeholders,

3) to support the development of the Group’s business with the help of the strong capital base.

Capital adequacy report is submitted to the supervising authority monthly in accordance with the Financial and
Capital Market Commission reguirements.

The Group's regulatory capital is divided into two tiers:

1) Tier 1 capital consists of the ordinary shares, share premium, mandatory reserve, retalned earnings of
the previous financial year, the audited profit of current financial year, negative revaluation reserve of financial
assets and less the intangible assets and part of investments to financial institutions,

2) Tier 2 capital consists of subordinated loans, other reserves.

The risk-weighted assets are measured by means of risk weights classified according to the nature of each
assets and counterparty. A similar treatment with some adjustments is adopted for the off-balance sheet
exposures.

In 2010 the Group's capital adequacy ratio is 11,40% and the Bank's — 11,58% (2009: 10,78%; 10,79%).
Legislation determines minimum capital as at least 8% of the sum of the risk—weighted exposure.

According to the Financial and Capital Market Commission Regulations for Calculating the Minimum Capital
Requirements, bank shall provide own funds which shall at all times exceed or equat the sum of the capital
requirements for:

+ credit risk;

«  market risk;

* operational risk.

In compliance with these regulations the Bank and the Group calculate credit risk minimum capital requirement
by using standardised approach, the Bank and the Group do not apply any VaR or other internal models for the
calculation of market risk capital requirement and apply Basic Indicators Approach for calculating of operaticnal
risk capital requirement.

The risk-weighted assets are measured by means of risk weights classified according to the nature of each
assets and counterparty. A similar treatment with some adjustments 15 adopted for the off-balance sheet
exposures,

For credit risk capital requirement calculation the Bank uses the rating agency Moody’s ratings for counterparty
risk assessment.
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39 CAPITAL ADEQUACY (continued)

Total own funds for solvency purposes
Original own funds
Eligible Capital
Of which: Non-innovative instruments subject to limit
--Paid up capital
--Share premium
Eligible Reserves
-Reserves
Reserves (including valuation differences)
Loss from current year
Other deductions from Original Own Funds
-- Intangible assets
Additional own funds
Core Additional Own Funds
--Revaluation reserves
Supplementary Additional Own Funds
--Subordinated loan capital

Memorandum item:
Own Funds relevant for limits to large exposures when

additional capital to cover market risks is not used AND for

limits to qualifying participating interests

Total original own funds for general solvency purposes
Total additional own funds for general solvency purposes

Total own funds relevant for the limits of large exposures
when additional capital to cover market risks is used
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2010 2010
Group Bank
LVL'000 LVL'QG00
162,613 166,935
116,979 121,300
183,355 183,355
183,355 183,335
134,361 134,361
48,994 48,994
(65,169) {61,195)
{33,868) {33,035)
{33,868) {33,035)
{31,302) (28,160)
{1,207) (861)
{1,207) {8561)
45,635 46,635
93 a3

93 93
45,542 45,542
45,542 45,542
162,613 166,935
116,979 121,300
45,634 45,635
162,613 166,935
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39 CAPITAL ADEQUACY (continued)

2010 2010
Group Bank
LVL'000 LVL'GGO
Capital requirements 114,151 115,351
Total capital requirements for credit, counterparty credit 105,852 107,612
and dilution risks and free deaneries
Standardised approach (SA) 105,852 107,612
S5A exposure classes excluding securitization positions 105,852 107,612
--Central governments or central banks - -
--Regional governments or local authorities 140 138
--Administrative bodies and non-commercial undertakings 236 227
--Instituticns 1,754 1,748
--Corporate 31,258 42,020
--Retail 47,086 43,151
--Secured by real estate property 3,776 3,776
--Past due items 14,600 13,309
--Covered bonds - -
--Short-term claims on institutions and corporate - -
--Other items 7,002 3,243
Total capital requirermnents for position foreign Exchange 447 62
and commodity risks
Position, foreign exchange and commodity risks under 447 62
standardised approaches {SA)
-Foreign Exchange 447 62
Total capital requirements for operational risks (OpR ) 7,853 7,677
OpR Basic indicator approach (BIA) 7,853 7,677
Memorandum items:
Surplus / Deficit of own funds, before other and
transitional capital requirements 48,462 51,583
Solvency ratio (%), before other and transitional capital
reqguirements 11,40% 11,58%
Surplus/ Deficit of own funds 48,462 51,583
Solvency ratio (%) 11,40% 11,58%
Internal assessment Surplus / Deficit of capital 21,410 23,774
Internal assessment of capital 162,613 166,935
Internal assessment of capital needs 141,203 143,160

The Bank review and improve the risk identification and management policies and procedures according to the
changes in the Groups and the Banks activities and financial situation at least once a year. Amendments and
updates mostly are done during annual internal capital adequacy assessment process when significant risks are
to be reassessed or identified and assessed.

The Group and the Bank use ,Pillar 1 +" approach for capital adequacy assessment, at first minimum regulatory
capital requirements are analyzed and after then internal capital add-ons are calculated without taking into
account any diversification effects between particutar risks.

During internal capital adequacy assessment process, the Group and the Bank usually performs actions as
follows:

- analyzes available amount of own funds and its historical volatility, including in the breakdown of
certain capital elements;

- analyzes amount of minimum and internal capital requirements and its historical volatility in the
breakdown of the risk types;

- analyzes significant risks for whom capital need to be maintained;

- analyzes asset and off-balance sheet items, including analysis of loan portfolio volume, structure,
quality, amount of provisions made as well as estimates appropriate forecasts for following periods;

- calculates minimum and internal capital requirements by taking into account planned changes in the
Groups and the Banks activities and financlal situation;

- performs stress testing and estimates capital buffer;

- prepare forecast of available own funds by taking into account planned incomes and expenses,
including provision amount to be made, planned capital injections and other significant factors;

- prepare regulatory and internal capital adequacy forecast, including setting appropriate strategic gaals.

Regular monitoring and control of capital adequacy has been carried out in the Group and the Bank. During
capital adequacy assessment and planning in 2010 several improvements have been done, including carrying
out in-depth analysis of the loan portfolio since loan portfolio s the main risk source in the Group and the Bank.
Improvement of internal capital adequacy assessment process will continue in the coming years by taking into
account changes in internal and external factors.
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39 CAPITAL ADEQUACY (continued)

There were several risks that have been assessed as significant for 2010 and for whom adeguate internal
capital has been kept in addition to the set of minimum regulatory capital requirements.

Concentratian risk

Concentration risk is the risk arising from unequal diversification within the Bank's credit portfolio, e.g., from
having in the portfolio a number of obligors whose fortunes are affected by a common factors {sector, country,
particular macroeconomic variables etc.).

Internal capital requirements for individual and inter-connected party’s concentration, industries concentration,
collateral concentration and concentration of currencies are calculated. Group applies its internal methodology
based on standardized Herfindahl-Hirshmann Index to calculate add-ons to the regulatory capital for specific
concentration dimensions.

Operational risk

The add-on is estimated by taking into account the result of actual and potential loss registered in the Banks
operational risk data base and by comparing the result with the one calculated by using basic indicator
approach. The most conservative off the two values is included in the internal capital adequacy assessment.

Business risk and Strategic risk

Business risk is the risk of loss due to changes in the competitive environment that damage the franchise or
operating economics of a business or due to an adverse effect of top-level decisions. Strategic risk represents
the risk of negative trends in income on account of previous or future fundamental business-policy decisions,
produced by investment decisions In various business lines or regions (such as internal/external growth or
investments),

The basis for the decision on a capital add-on is given by self assessment. The most relevant internal and
external factors are identified for each entity and evaluated by estimating the likelihood and the consequence.
However, in 2010 the Group and the Bank prescribed that starting from 2011 the capital kept to cover these
risks should not be estimated less than 5% of the sum of minimum capital requirements.

Interest rate risk

The interest rate risk is a risk arising from exposing current and future financial results of the Bank's net
interest income due to an adverse impact of changes in interest rates. For daily interest rate risk management
the Group and the Bank uses gap analysis method and stress testing, which covers the mast significant interest
rate risk sources and allows to assess Influence to income and economic value, If Interest rates change. It
should be stressed that the Group and the Bank has set low risk level of acceptable interest rate risk, so the
capital needed to cover the risk was estimated by using the simplified approach prescribed by the Financial and
Capital Market Commission. In addition, assessment is performed to estimate whether capital maintained for
interest rate risk is adequate in comparison with the result originated from methods used during daily risk
management.
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40 MATURITY ANALYSIS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
The table below allocates the Group’s assets and fiabilities to maturity groupings based on the time remaining

from the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity dates. The maturity analysis of discounted assets and
liabilities as at 31 December 2010 was as follows:

Upto 1l 1-3 3-12 Over 12 Total
month months months months
LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVYL'O00
Assets
Cash and balances with the Central
banks 72,736 - - - 72,736
Due from other credit institutions
(demand) 16,493 - - - 16,493
Derivatives 7,830 394 288 - 8,512
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 10,188 28,121 47,153 53,305 138,767
Financial assets available-for-sale 10 10
l.oans and advances 163,794 82,618 151,583 1,101,663 1,499,658
-~ Due from other credit institutions
(term) 54,004 873 54,877
-- Loans to customers 109,790 82,618 151,583 1,100,790 1,444,781
Accrued income and deferred expenses 105 223 345 7 6BO
Property and equipment 214 315 4,029 40,636 45,194
Intangible assets - - - 1,207 1,207
Investments in the share capital of
related companies - - - - -
Other assets 1,076 1,162 3,849 15,577 21,664
Total assets 272,436 112 833 207,247 1,212,405 1,804,921
Liahilities
Liabllities to credit institutions {(demand) 41,207 - - - 41,207
Derivatives 13,191 1,125 750 353 15,419
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: 510,789 723,355 99,977 234,757 1,568,878
-- Due to credit institutions (tarm) 175,805 658,852 26,669 226,606 1,087,932
-- Deposits from customers 328,721 64,503 73,308 8,151 474,683
~-= Other financial fiabilities 6,263 - - - 6,263
Accrued expenses and deferred income 758 - - - 758
Income tax liabilities - - - - -
Other liabilities 102 1,394 2,703 1,654 5,853
Subordinated loan 79 152 141 54,116 54,488
Total liabilities 566,126 726,026 103,571 290,880 1,686,603
Shareholders™ equity - - - 118,318 118,318
Total liabilities and sharehelders®
equity 566,126 726,026 103,571 409,198 1,804,921
Contingent liabilities 2,208 2,341 3,069 16,342 23,960
Commitments 11,868 30,272 27,875 2,224 72,240

Liguidity risk {307,765) (645,806) 72,731 784,642 -

55



AS DnB NORD Banka
Consolidated and Bank Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2010

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

40

MATURITY ANALYSIS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

The table below allocates the Group’s assets and llabilities to maturity groupings based on the time remaining
from the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity dates. The maturity analysis of assets and liabilities as

at 31 December 2009 was as follows:

Assets
Cash and balances with the Central
banks
Due from other credit institutions
(demand)
Derivatives
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Financial assets available-for-sale
Loans and advances
== Due from other credit institutions
(term)
-- Loans to customers
Accrued income and deferred expenses
Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Investments in the share capital of
related companies
Other assets
Total assets

Liabilities

Liabilities to credit institutions {demand)

Derivatives

Financial {iabilities at amortised cost:
-- Due to credit institutions (term)
-- Deposits from customers
-- Other financial labilities

Accrued expenses and deferred income

Income tax liabilities

Other liabilities

Subordinated loan

Total Habilities

Shareholders” equity

Total liabilities and shareholders”
equity

Contingent liabillties
Commitments

Liquidity risk

Uptol 1-3 3-12 QOver 12 Total
month months months months
LVL'000 LVL000 LVL'000 LvVL'a00 LVL000
95,876 - - 95,876
8,833 - - 8,833
8,882 11 145 729 9,767
5,733 8,464 53,620 51,856 119,673
- - - 10 10
39,745 130,562 180,053 1,262,184 1,612,543
1 6,067 1 5,390 11,458
39,744 124,495 180,052 1,256,794 1,601,085
i83 513 - - 696
425 980 4,029 23,821 29,255
- - - 1,539 1,539
678 932 2,638 17,957 22,205
160,355 141,462 240,485 1,358,095 1,900,397
54,536 - - - 54,536
13,988 2 130 2,625 16,745
350,506 282,622 713,074 296,359 1,642,561
91,188 217,037 656,496 291,249 1,255,970
254,722 65,585 56,578 5,110 381,995
4,596 - - - 4,596
525 1,498 - - 2,021
- - - 686 686
768 663 1,931 1,196 4,558
- - - 54,481 54,481
420,323 284,783 715,135 355,347 1,775,588
- - - 124,809 124,809
420,323 284,783 715,135 480,156 1,900,397
752 1,486 15,201 4,753 22,192
31,339 41,105 7,432 4,013 83,889
(296,174) (1.85,912) (497,283) 873,289 -
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The table below allocates the Bank's assets and liabilities to maturity groupings based on the tirme remaining

from the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity dates. The maturity analysis of assets and liabilities as
at 31 December 2010 was as follows:

Upto1l 1-3 3~12 Over 12 Total
month months months months
LVL'000 LVL'O00 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000
Assets
Cash and balances with the Central
banks 72,736 - - - 72,736
Due from other credit institutions
{demand) 16,164 - - - 16,164
Derivatives 7,830 394 288 - 8,512
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 10,188 28,121 47,153 53,305 138,767
Financial assets avallable-for-sale 10 10
Loans and advances 211,245 73,909 124,419 1,044,537 1,454,110
-~ Due from other credit institutions
{term) 54,004 B73 54,877
- [ pans to customers 157,241 73,909 124,419 1,043,664 1,399,233
Accrued income and deferred expenses 105 123 345 7 580
Property and equiprment - - - 6,629 6,629
Intangible asseis - - - 861 861
Investrments in the share capital of
related companies - - - 5,047 5,047
Other assets 3,776 771 22 11,018 15,587
Total assets 322,044 103,318 172,227 1,121,414 1,719,003
Liabilities
Liabilities to credit institutions (demand) 43,207 - - - 41,207
Derivatives 13,191 1,125 750 353 15,419
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: 520,470 600,090 100,742 234,757 1,456,059
-~ Due to credit institutions {term) 175,805 535,542 26,669 226,606 964,622
-- Deposits from customers 338,402 64,548 74,073 8,151 485,174
-- Other financial liabilities 6,263 - - - 6,263
Accrued expenses and deferred income 693 - - - 693
Income fax liabilities - - - - -
Other liabilities o 102 - 361 28,381 28,844
Subordinated loan 79 152 141 54,116 54,488
Total liabilities 575,742 601,367 101,894 317,607 1,596,710
Shareholders” equity - - - 122,293 122,293
Total liabilities and shareholders’
equity 575,742 601,367 101,994 439,900 1,719,003
Contingent liabilities 2,208 2,342 3,069 139,333 146,951
Commitments 40,415 30,272 27,876 2,224 100,787
Liquidity risk (298,807) (528,175) 39,289 539,956 -
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The table below allocates the Bank’s assets and liabilities to maturity groupings based on the time remaining

from the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity dates. The maturity analysis of assets and liabilities as
at 31 December 2009 was as follows:

Upto1l 1-3 3-12 Over 12 Tatal
month months months months
LVL'000 LVL'000 Lvi‘'c00 LYL'000 LVL'000
Assets
Cash and balances with the Central
banks 95,876 - - - 95,876
Due from other credit institutions
{demand) 8,311 - - - 8,311
Derivatives 8,882 11 145 729 9,767
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 5,733 8,464 53,620 51,856 119,673
Financial assets available-for-sale - - - 10 10
Loans and advances 40,492 123,125 171,318 1,180,964 1,515,898
-- Due from other credit institutions
{term) i1 6,067 1 5,390 11,458
-- Loans to customers 40,491 117,058 171,317 1,175,574 1,504,440
Accrued income and deferred expenses 183 379 - - Sez
Property and equipment - - - 6,077 6,077
Intangible assets - - - 1,146 1,146
Investments in the share capital of
related companies - - - 1,997 1,997
Other assets 1,429 466 4,860 6,483 13,233
Total assets 160,901 132,445 229,943 1,249,262 1,772,550
Liabilities
Liabilities to credit institutions {demand) 54,536 - - - 54,536
Derivatives 13,988 2 130 2,625 16,745
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: 418,740 282,604 492,183 296,359 1,485,886
-~ Due to credit institutions (term) 91,049 217,019 435,605 291,249 1,034,922
-- Deposits from customers 323,095 65,585 56,578 5,110 450,368
-« Other financial liabifities 4,596 - - - 4,596
Accrued expenses and deferred income 491 1,496 - - 1,987
Income tax liabilities - - - -
Other liabilities 9,307 12,573 6,493 800 29,273
Subordinated loan - - - 54 481 54,481
Total liabilities 497,062 296,675 498,806 354,365 1,646,908
Shareholders™ equity - - - 125,642 125,642
Total liabilities and shareholders’
equity 497,062 296,675 498,806 480,007 1,772,550
Contingent liabilities 752 1,486 225,201 15,644 243,083
Commitments 31,339 41,105 7,432 4,013 83,889
Liquidity risk (368,252) (206,821) (501,496) 749,598 -
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40 MATURITY ANALYSIS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)
The following table represents the analysis of the remaining cash flows of financial liabilities.

The table below allocates the Group’s financial liabilities undiscounted cash flows as at 31 December 2010:

Short term funding
Long term funding
Subordinated loans
Demand deposits
Term deposits

Derivatives:

Perivatives settled on a
gross basis

Currency SWAPs

inflow

outflow
Foreign exchange
derivatives

inflow

outflow
Derivatives settled on a
net basis

Total

Short term funding
Long term funding
Subardinated loans
Demand deposits
Term deposits

Derivatives:

Derivatives settied on a
gross basis

Currency SWAPs

inflow

outflow
Foreign exchange
derivatives

inflow

outflow
Derivatives settled on a
net basis

Upto1l 3-12
month  1-3 months months 1-5 years >5 years Total
LVL'000 LVL'O00 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000
(244,270) (220,503) (14,076) - - {478,849)
(163,119) (249,109) (17,962) (223,664) (10,639) (664,493)
(124) (236) (1,100) (37,992) (21,392) {60,844)
{189,295} - - - - (189,295)
{82,451) (25,243) (123,432) (67,948) {364) {(299,438)
82,431 43,726 30,813 63,630 - 220,600
80,913 46,864 26,716 61,311 215,804
234 2,158 1,330 - - 3,722
237 2,143 1,341 - - 3,721
{(227) (1,359) (4,025) (6,546) {(913) {13,070)
(515,671) (401,559) (100,395) (211,209) (33,308) {1,262,142)
The table below allocates the Bank's financial liabilities cash flows as at 31 December 2010:
Uptol
month 1-3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years >5 years Total
LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000
(244,270) (220,503) (14,076} - - {478,849)
(162,928) (126,063} (17,962) (223,664) (10,639) (541,256)
{124) {236) (1,100} {37,992) (21,392) (60,844)
(198,574) - - - - (198,974)
{B2,478) (25,288} (124,201} {67,948) {364) {300,279)
82,431 43,726 30,813 63,630 - 220,600
B0D,913 46,864 26,716 61,311 215,804
234 2,158 1,330 - - 3,722
237 2,143 1,341 - - 3,721
{(227) {1,359) (4,025) {6,546) (913) (13,070)
{(525,186) (278,558) {101,164) (211,209) {(33,308) (1,149,425)

Total
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40 MATURITY ANALYSIS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES {(continued)

The table below allocates the Group’s financial liabilities cash flows as at 31 December 2009;

Upto1l 3-12
month 1-3 months months 1-5 years >5 years Total
LVL'000 LVL'a00 LVL'000 LVL'000 ivL'000 LVL'000
Shaort term funding (132,873) (158,264) (115,038) - - (406,175)
Long term funding (13,634) (64,036) (574,678) (254,794) (21,525) (928,667)
Subordinated loans {(120) (228) (1,062) {15,304) (45,268) (61,982)
Demand deposits (155,339) - - - - (155,339)
Terrm deposits (105,563) {65,140) (56,865) {4,814) (247) (232,629)
Derivatives:
Derivatives settled on a
gross basis
Currency SWAPs
inflow 102,670 37,504 24,500 - - 164,674
outflow (100,795) (36,249) (23,119 - - (160,163)
Foreign exchange
derivatives
inflow 1,581 943 109 - - 2,633
outflow (1,592) {940) (107) - - (2,639)
Derivatives settled on a
net basis 161 {938) {4,247} {11,164) (1,169) (17,357)
Total (405,504) (287,348) {750,507) {286,076) (68,209) (1,797,644)
The table below allocates the Bank's financial liabilities cash flows as at 31 December 2009;
Upto il
month 1I-3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years »>5 years Total
LVL'000 LVL'00G LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000
Short term funding {132,873) {158,264) (115,038) - - {406,175)
Long term funding {13,378) (63,550) (353,4086) (254,794) (21,525) {706,653)
Subordinated loans (120) (228) (1,062} (15,304) (45,268) {61,982)
Demand deposits (223,187) - - - - {223,187)
Term deposits (105,639) _ {65,140) {57,314} (4,814} (247) (233,154)
Derivatives;
Derivatives settled on a
gross basis
Currency SWAPs
inflow 162,670 37,504 24,500 - - 164,674
outflow (100,795) {36,249) (23,119) - - (160,163)
Foreign exchange
derivatives
inflow 1,581 943 109 - - 2,633
outflow (1,592) {240) (107) - - (2,639)
Derivatives settled on a
net basis 161 {93B) (4,247) (11,164) {1,169) (17,357)
Total {473,172) (286,862) {529,684) (286,076) (68,209) (1,644,003)
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41 CURRENCY ANALYSIS

The currency analysis of assets and llabilities by currency profile of the Group as at 31 December 2010 was as

follows:

Assets
Cash and balances with the Central banks

Due from other credit institutions (demand)

Derivatives

Financial assets at fair value through profit

ar loss
Financial assets available-for-sale
Loans and advances
-- Due from other credit institutions
(term)
-- Loans to customers
Accrued income and deferred expanses
Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Qther assets
Total assets

Liabilities
Liabilities to credit institutions {demand)
Derivatives
Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
-- Due to credit institutions (term)
~= Deposits from customers
-~ Other financial liabifities
Accrued expenses and deferred income
Other liabilities
Subordinated loan
Total liabilities
Shareholders™ equity

Total liabilities and shareholders’
equity

Net long/ (short} position on balance
sheet

Off-balance sheet claims arising from
foreign exchange

Net long/ (short) position on foreign
exchange

Net long/ (short) position

LVL ush EUR Other Total
currencies LVL'000
68,412 873 3,092 359 72,736
57 6,291 7,060 3,085 16,493
6,524 1,009 875 4 8,512
102,821 - 35,946 - 138,767
- - 10 - 10
23,753 37,448 1,437,726 731 1,499,658
6,483 5,852 42,542 - 54,877
17,270 31,586 1,395,184 731 1,444,781
569 70 41 - 680
28,128 - 17,066 - 45,194
1,207 - - - 1,207
17,465 BB7 3,309 3 21,664
248,936 46,578 1,505,225 4,182 1,804,921
774 324 40,061 48 41,207
11,503 871 3,039 6 15,419
216,550 51,435 1,296,042 4,851 1,568,878
12,961 10,309 1,064,352 310 1,087,932
201,341 38,744 230,104 4,494 474,683
2,248 2,382 1,586 47 6,263
520 65 173 - 758
2,841 2 3,010 - 5,853
- - 54,488 - 54,488
232,188 52,697 1,396,813 4,905 1,686,603
118,318 - - - 118,318
350,506 52,697 1,396,813 4,905 1,804,921
(101,570) (6,119) 108,412 (723) -
111,830 6,308 (116,309) 717 2,546
10,260 189 (7,897) (6)
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a1 CURRENCY ANALYSIS (continued)

The currency analysis of assets and liabllities by currency profile of the Group as at 31 December 2009 was as

follows:

Assets

Cash and balances with the Central banks
Due from other credit institutions (demand)
Dertvatives
Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss
Financial assets available-for-sale
Loans and advances
-- Due from other credit institutions
{term)
-- Loans to customers
Accrued income and deferred expenses
Preperty and equipment
Intangible assets
Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities
Liabilities to credit institutions {(demand)
Derivatives
Financia! liabilities at amortised cost:
-- Due to credit institutions (term)
-- Deposits from customers
-- Other financial liabilities
Accrued expenses and deferred income
Income tax liabilities
Other liabilities
Subordinated foan

TFotal liabilities

Shareholders™ equity

Total liabilities and shareholders®
equity

Net long/ (short) position on balance sheet

Off-balance sheet claims arising from
foreign exchange

Net long/ (short)} position on foreign exchange
Net long/ (short) position

LVL usoD EUR Other Total
currencies LVi."000

92,870 608 2,067 331 95,876
11 2,351 4,203 2,268 B,833
8,357 2 1,408 - 9,767
52,806 - 66,867 - 119,673
- - 10 - 10

156,800 46,640 1,545,469 634 1,612,543
6,067 457 4,934 - 11,458
13,733 46,183 1,540,535 634 1,601,085
464 6 226 - 696
19,899 - 9,356 - 29,255
1,539 - - - 1,539
10,493 745 10,934 33 22,205
206,239 50,352 1,640,540 3,266 1,900,397
2,611 6,106 45,743 76 54,536
13,979 3 2,763 - 16,745
176,189 46,362 1,417,077 2,933 1,642,561
26,654 14,841 1,214,277 198 1,255,970
146,799 31,029 201,562 2,605 381,995
2,736 492 1,238 130 4,596
1,820 86 115 - 2,021
686 - - - 686
3,626 - 932 - 4,558

- - 54,481 - 54,481
158,811 52,657 1,521,111 3,005 1,775,588
124,809 - - - 124,809
323,720 52,5857 1,521,111 3,009 1,900,397
(117,481) (2,205) 115,429 257 -
126,101 2,161  (123,684) (248) 4,330
8,621 {44) (4,255) 9 -
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The currency analysis of assets and liabilities by currency profile of the Bank as at 31 December 2010 was as
follows:

LvVL UsD EUR Other Total
currencies LVL'O00
Assets
Cash and balances with the Central banks 68,412 873 3,092 359 72,736
Due from other credit institutions {(demand) 25 6,289 6,765 3,085 16,164
Derivatives 6,524 1,009 975 4 8,512
Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss 102,821 - 35,946 - 138,767
Financial assets available-for-sale 10 - 10
Loans and advances 45,333 37,363 1,370,683 731 1,454,110
-~ Due from other credit institutions
(term) 6,483 5,852 42,542 - 54,877
-- Loans tc customers 38,850 31,511 1,328,141 731 1,399,233
Accrued income and deferred expenses 483 70 27 - 580
Property and equipment 6,629 - - - 6,629
Intangible assets 861 - - - 861
Investments in the share capital of related
companies 5,047 - - - 5,047
Other assets 13,626 8B4 1,074 3 15,587
Total assets 249,761 46,488 1,418,572 4,182 1,719,003
l.iabilities
Liabilities to credit institutions {demand) 774 324 40,061 48 41,207
Derivatives 11,503 871 3,039 6 15,419
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: 218,207 h1,436 1,181,565 4,851 1,456,059
«« Due to credit institutions (term) 12,961 10,309 941,042 310 964,622
-- Deposits from customers 202,998 38,745 238,937 4,494 485,174
-- Other financial liabilities 2,248 2,382 1,586 47 6,263
Accrued expenses and deferred income 456 65 172 - 693
Other liabtities 5,785 7 23,052 - 28,844
Subordinated loan - - 54,488 - 54,488
Total liabilities 236,725 52,703 1,302,377 4,905 1,596,710
Shareholders™ equity 122,293 - - - 122,293
Total liabilities and shareholders™
equity 359,018 52,703 1,302,377 4,905 1,719,003
Net long/ (short) position on balance
sheet {109,257) {6,215) 116,195 (723) -
Off-balance sheet claims arising from
foreign exchange
Net long/ (short) position on foreign
exchange 111,830 6,308 (116,309) 717 2,546
Net long/ (short) position 2,573 93 (114) {6)
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41 CURRENCY ANALYSIS (continued)

The currency analysis of assets and liabllities by currency profile of the Bank as at 31 December 2009 was as

follows:
LVL Usp EUR Qther Total
currencies LVL'000
Assets
Cash and balances with the Central banks 92,870 608 2,067 331 95,876
Due from other credit institutions (demand) - 2,349 3,694 2,268 8,311
Derivatives 8,357 2 1,408 - 9,767
Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss 52,806 - 66,867 - 119,673
Financial assets available-for-sale - - 10 - 10
Loans and advances 38,770 46,470 1,430,025 633 1,515,898
-- Due from other credit institutions
(term) 6,067 457 4,934 - 11,458
-- Loans to customers 32,703 456,013 1,425,091 633 1,504,440
Accrued income and deferred expenses 354 6 202 - 562
Property and equipment 6,077 - - - 6,077
Intangible assets 1,146 - - - 1,146
Investments in the share capital of related
companles 1,997 - - - 1,997
Other assets 7,589 745 4,866 33 13,233
Total assets 209,966 50,180 1,509,139 3,265 1,772,550
Liabilities
Liabilities to credit institutions (demand) 2,611 6,106 45,743 76 54,536
Derivatives 13,579 3 2,763 - 16,745
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: 176,944 46,363 1,263,647 2,932 1,489,886
-- Due to credit institutions (ferm) 26,654 14,841 993,229 198 1,034,922
-- Deposits from customers 147,554 31,030 269,180 2,604 450,368
-- Qther financial liabilities 2,736 492 1,238 130 4,596
Accrued expenses and deferred income 1,786 86 115 - 1,987
Other liabilities 6,362 i2 22,899 - 29,273
Subordinated lcan - - 54,481 - 54,481
Total liahilities 201,682 52,570 1,389,648 3,008 1,646,908
Shareholders® equity 125,642 - - - 125,642
Total liabilities and shareholders™
equity 327,324 52,570 1,389,648 3,008 1,772,550
Net long/ {short) position on balance
sheet {117,358} (2,390} 119,491 257 -
Off-balance sheet claims arising from
foreign exchange
Net long/ (short} position on foreign
exchange 126,101 2,161 (123,684) (248) 4,330
Net long/ (short) position 8,744 (229) (4,193) ) -
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42 HEDGE ACCOUNTING

As at part of risk management process, management identifies the financial risk to which the bank is exposed.
A common strategy in rislkk management is reduction or elimination of the risks that the bank faces by entering
into transaction that gives an offsetting risk profile.

The bank for interest rate risk hedge accounting uses fair value accounting model.

Fair value hedge is a hedge of the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability, or an
identified portion of such an asset or liability that is attributable to a particular risk and that will affect reported
net income.

The Bank entered and designated the receive-variable, pay-fixes IRS as the derivative hedging instruments.
The Bank identified and aggregated the portfolio/group of fixed interest rate loans (mortgage and private) as
the hedged item.

For the year ended 31 Decemnber 2010, the Bank recognised a net gain LVL 948 thousand on the hedging
instruments. The total net Joss on the hedged items attributable to the hedged risks amounted to LVL 1,809
thousand.

LVL00G Notional Notional Gains/(losses) an the Gains/(losses) on the
amount amount hedged item attributable to hedging instrument
the hedge risk
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Hedged item
Loans portfolic 97,198 106,896 (1,809)* 1,993 948%* (1,996)

* Two hedge constructions were terminated and notional amount of hedged items was decreased.

43 LITIGATION AND CLAIMS

In the ordinary course of business, the Bank has been involved in a number of legal proceedings to recover
outstanding credit balances and maintain collaterals. The Management of the Bank believes that any legal
proceedings pending as at 31 December 2010 wilt not result in material losses for the Bank and/ or Group.

a4 EVENTS AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE

As of the last day of the reparting year until the date of signing these consolidated financial statements there

have been no events requiring adjustment of or disclosure in the consclidated financial statements or notes
thereto.
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